
  

 
Stayton City Council Agenda  Page 1 of 4 
May 18, 2020 

AGENDA 
STAYTON CITY COUNCIL 

Monday, May 18, 2020 
Stayton Community Center 

400 W. Virginia Street 
Stayton, Oregon  97383 

 
TELECONFERENCE MEETING 

City officials request all citizens that are able, to view the live stream on the City of Stayton’s 
YouTube account to view the meeting from home. Social distancing is essential in reducing the 
spread of COVID-19. The City is using technology to make meetings available to the public 
without increasing the risk of exposure.  

Please use the following option to view the meeting: 

• Live Stream on the City of Stayton YouTube - https://youtu.be/EMharCYjlBM  

To maintain compliance with public meeting laws, a limited number of chairs will be provided in 
the building for citizens to listen to the meeting; however, social distancing is essential in 
reducing the spread of COVID-19 and no more than 10 people total will be allowed in the 
building at one time. City officials strongly encourage all citizens to utilize YouTube to view the 
Council meeting rather than attending in person.  

If you wish to testify as part of the Public Hearing on Ordinance No. 1044 Extending Land Use 
Approvals, please read the following: 

• Written Testimony: It is strongly encouraged that interested parties provide testimony 
in writing prior to the meeting and abstain from attending the meeting in person. 
Written testimony submitted at least two hours prior to the meeting start time will be 
provided to the public body in advance of the meeting. Testimony can be provided in 
the manner dictated for each individual public body. Submit your written testimony to 
dfleishman@ci.stayton.or.us.  

• Conference Call: Should it be necessary to provide verbal testimony, it is recommended 
that interested parties participate via an established City conference call line. Parties 
interested in participating in this manner shall contact City staff at least two hours prior 
to the meeting start time with their name, address, and phone number they will be 
calling from. Contact staff at dfleishman@ci.stayton.or.us.  

• Participate in Person: Although it is strongly encouraged that people not attend the 
meeting in person, the opportunity will still exist to participate in the meeting at a 
designated meeting location. The method of this participation may include in person 
public testimony, access to a phone to call into meeting via a conference call line, or 
other available public testimony method as allowed by the Oregon State Public 
Meetings law. Please note that in person meeting attendance will be subject to 
applicable regulations in place at the time of the meeting and are subject to change. 

 

https://youtu.be/EMharCYjlBM
mailto:dfleishman@ci.stayton.or.us
mailto:dfleishman@ci.stayton.or.us


  

 
Stayton City Council Agenda  Page 2 of 4 
May 18, 2020 

 

Public comment will be accepted as follows: 

• Public Comment on Items not on the Agenda: There will be no verbal public comment. 
All parties interested in providing general public comments may email the comments to 
cityofstayton@ci.stayton.or.us and they will be distributed to the City Council.  

• Public Comments on Action Items: There will be no verbal public comment on action 
items. All parties interested in providing public comments on action items may do so in 
written form. Written comments should be submitted to cityofstayton@ci.stayton.or.us. 
Comments received at least two hours prior to the meeting start time will be provided 
to the City Council in advance of the meeting.  

 

 
CALL TO ORDER    7:00 PM 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
a. April 20, 2020 City Council Minutes 
b. Renewal of Chemeketa Community Regional Library Service Contract 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
Ordinance No. 1044 Extending Land Use Approvals  
a. Commencement of Public Hearing and Opening Statement 
b. Staff summary 
c. Questions from the Council 
d. Persons in favor 
e. Persons opposed 
f. Other interested persons 
g. Questions from the Council 
h. Staff summary 
i. Close of hearing 
j. Council deliberation 
k. Council Decision on Ordinance No. 1044 
 
GENERAL BUSINESS 
Resolution No. 1004, Adopting the City of Stayton Employee Handbook   ACTION 
and Repealing Resolutions Related to the Previous Personnel Manual 
a. Staff Report – Alissa Angelo 
b. Council Discussion 
c. Council Decision 
 
Business Oregon Matching Grant for Emergency Assistance to Small Businesses 
a. Staff Report – Dan Fleishman 
b. Council Discussion 
c. Council Decision 
 

mailto:cityofstayton@ci.stayton.or.us
mailto:cityofstayton@ci.stayton.or.us


  

 
Stayton City Council Agenda  Page 3 of 4 
May 18, 2020 

ADJOURN 
 

The meeting location is accessible to persons with disabilities. A request for an interpreter 
for the hearing impaired or other accommodations for persons with disabilities should be 

made at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. If you require special accommodations contact 
Administrative Services Manager Alissa Angelo at (503) 769-3425. 



  

 
Stayton City Council Agenda  Page 4 of 4 
May 18, 2020 

CALENDAR OF EVENTS 
MAY 2020 

Monday May 18 City Council 7:00 p.m. https://youtu.be/EMharCYjlBM  
Wednesday May 20 Library Board Cancelled  

Monday May 25 CITY OFFICES CLOSED IN OBSERVANCE OF MEMORIAL DAY HOLIDAY 
Tuesday May 26 Planning Commission Cancelled  

JUNE 2020 
Monday June 1 City Council 7:00 p.m. https://youtu.be/4KG6SgOEvVQ 
Tuesday June 2 Parks & Recreation Board Cancelled  
Tuesday June 9 Commissioner’s Breakfast Cancelled  
Monday June 15 City Council 7:00 p.m. https://youtu.be/87H8RYlcpbE 

Wednesday June 17 Library Board Cancelled  
Monday June 29 Planning Commission 7:00 p.m. https://youtu.be/ykOi3FYICRg 

JULY 2020 
Friday July 3 CITY OFFICES CLOSED IN OBSERVANCE OF FOURTH OF JULY HOLIDAY 

Monday July 6 City Council 7:00 p.m. https://youtu.be/2Oooxb2u1Vc  
Tuesday July 7 Parks & Recreation Board 6:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 
Tuesday July 14 Commissioner’s Breakfast 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 

Wednesday July 15 Library Board 6:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 
Monday July 20 City Council 7:00 p.m. https://youtu.be/lP2rQ79AzgE  
Monday July 27 Planning Commission 7:00 p.m. https://youtu.be/nwyyMqTIAK4  

AUGUST 2020 
Monday August 3 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Tuesday August 4 Parks & Recreation Board 6:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 
Tuesday August 11 Commissioner’s Breakfast 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 
Monday August 17 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

Wednesday August 19 Library Board 6:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 
Monday July 27 Planning Commission 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

SEPTEMBER 2020 
Tuesday September 1 Parks & Recreation Board 6:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 
Monday September 7 CITY OFFICES CLOSED IN OBSERVANCE OF LABOR DAY HOLIDAY 
Tuesday September 8 Commissioner’s Breakfast 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 
Tuesday September 8 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

Wednesday September 16 Library Board 6:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 
Monday September 21 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Monday September 28 Planning Commission 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

 

https://youtu.be/EMharCYjlBM
https://youtu.be/4KG6SgOEvVQ
https://youtu.be/87H8RYlcpbE
https://youtu.be/ykOi3FYICRg
https://youtu.be/2Oooxb2u1Vc
https://youtu.be/lP2rQ79AzgE
https://youtu.be/nwyyMqTIAK4


 
Stayton City Council Meeting Minutes                        Page 1 of 2 
April 20, 2020 

City of Stayton 
City Council Minutes 

April 20, 2020 

LOCATION:  STAYTON COMMUNITY CENTER, 400 W. VIRGINIA STREET, STAYTON 

Time Start: 7:03 P.M.     Time End: 8:08 P.M. 

COUNCIL MEETING ATTENDANCE LOG 

COUNCIL STAYTON STAFF  
Mayor Henry Porter (via Zoom) Alissa Angelo, Administrative Services Manager 
Councilor Paige Hook (joined via Zoom at 7:06 p.m.) Keith Campbell, City Manager 
Councilor Ben McDonald (via Zoom) Dan Fleishman, Director of Planning & Development (via Zoom) 
Councilor Christopher Molin (via Zoom) David Frisendahl, Police Chief 
Councilor Jordan Ohrt (via Zoom) Lance Ludwick, Public Works Director (via Zoom) 
Councilor David Patty (via Zoom) Janna Moser, Library Director (via Zoom) 
 Susannah Sbragia, Finance Director (via Zoom) 

 
AGENDA ACTIONS 

TELECONFERENCE MEETING 
Consent Agenda 
a. April 6, 2020 City Council Minutes 
 

 
Motion from Councilor Ohrt, seconded by Councilor Molin, 
to approve the consent agenda as presented. Motion passed 
4:0.  
 
Councilor Hook joined via Zoom at 7:06 p.m. 
 

Public Hearing None. 
 

General Business 
Resolution No. 1004, Adopting the City of Stayton 
Employee Handbook and Repealing Resolutions Related 
to the Previous Personnel Manual 
a. Staff Report – Alissa Angelo 

 
b. Council Discussion 

 
c. Council Decision 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
Ms. Angelo reviewed the staff report. 
 
Council discussion on changes and employee review.  
 
Motion from Councilor Hook, seconded by Councilor Patty, 
to approve the document as presented with a one week 
review period for employees and a one week period for staff 
and the legal team to respond to employees.  
 
Councilor Hook amended her motion to state Resolution No. 
1004 be modified to include the language “a one week 
review period for employees and a one week period for staff 
and the legal team to respond to employees prior to 
adoption.”  
 
After brief discussion with staff, Councilor Hook rescinded 



 
Stayton City Council Meeting Minutes                        Page 2 of 2 
April 20, 2020 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Council Goals Update 
a. Staff Report – Keith Campbell 
 
b. Council Discussion 
 
 
 
Emergency Management Equipment Update 
a. Staff Report – Lance Ludwick 

 
 

b. Council Discussion 
 
Budget to Actual 2019-20 Fiscal Year as of March 31, 
2020 

a. Staff Report – Susannah Sbragia 
 

b. Council Discussion 

her amendment and motion. 
 
Through a consensus of the Council (in favor were Councilor 
Ohrt, Councilor Hook, and Councilor Patty), staff was 
directed to share the document with City employees for 
review prior to adoption and request the City Attorney 
respond to any employee questions. 
 
The Resolution will be brought back before the Council at 
their May 18th meeting.  
 
 
Mr. Campbell reviewed the status of Council Goals. 
 
Brief Council discussion. 
 
 
 
 
Mr. Ludwick provided an update on Emergency 
Management Equipment. 
 
Council discussion on Emergency Management. 
 
 
 
Ms. Sbragia provided a review of her staff report. 
 
Brief Council discussion. 
 

Communications from Mayor and Councilors Council discussion on the community and response to the 
COVID-19 pandemic.  
 

 
APPROVED BY THE STAYTON CITY COUNCIL THIS 18TH DAY OF MAY 2020, BY A ____ VOTE OF THE STAYTON CITY 
COUNCIL. 
 

Date:    By:   
  Henry A. Porter, Mayor 
 
Date:   Attest:   

 Keith D. Campbell, City Manager 
       
Date:  Transcribed by:        
   Alissa Angelo, Administrative Services Manager 



 
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 
TO:   Mayor Henry Porter and the Stayton City Council 
 
FROM:  Janna Moser - Library Director 
 
DATE:   May 18, 2020 
 
SUBJECT:  Consent Agenda: Renewal of Chemeketa Community 

Regional Library Service Contract 
  
ISSUE 

CCRLS contract renewal 
 
ENCLOSURES 

• Intergovernmental Agreement-Contract #10426702 Amendment #02 
• Attachment A; Exhibit 1 to Attachment A, Attachment B 

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

CCRLS was formed in 1973 to support library services in the tri-county area, with its service 
boundaries the same as those of Chemeketa Community College. All residents of the service 
district currently pay approximately $0.08 per thousand to CCRLS for services. From those tax 
dollars an annual reimbursement is provided to member libraries based 50% on the assessed 
valuation of property in the local service area and 50% on the number of items circulated to 
non-residents in addition to the services outlined below.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 

Disbursement to the Stayton Public Library of $106,479 for 2020-21. 
Quarterly reimbursements for net lending at $1.50 per item.  
Continued participation in the Cooperative which provides these services at no additional 
charge: 

• SirsiDynix Symphony (Integrated Library System) 
• Patron access to over 1 million items 
• Online resources, databases, ebooks, and audiobooks 
• RFID technology, equipment, and supplies 
• Fiber optic internet connection, network support and security 
• Courier service  
• Computers, licensing, and additional software 
• Scanners and thermal receipt printers 
• Reimbursement for materials lost by non-Stayton patrons 
• Training and mileage reimbursement to trainings and meetings  



1 Revised 4/23/2020 md 

 
P.O. Box 14007, Salem, OR 97309-7070 - Phone: 503.315.4584 - Fax: 503.399.7316 

 
LIBRARY PARTICIPATION IN CHEMEKETA COOPERATIVE REGIONAL 

LIBRARY SERVICE  
 

Contract #10426700, Amendment #02 
 
Purpose: The purpose of this amendment is to update College Notices and Contact Person, add funding 
for the 2020-2021 fiscal year (Exhibit #1), replace Attachment A, and Attachment B. 
 
This Agreement is by and between Chemeketa Community College hereafter known as COLLEGE, and 
the City of Stayton, Oregon by and through its Stayton Public Library, hereafter known as CCRLS 
PARTICIPATING ENTITY. 
 
1) Clause 18) Notices, subsection COLLEGE, is deleted in its entirety and replaced by the following: 

 
18) Notices 

COLLEGE CCRLS MEMBER LIBRARY 
  

DOUG YANCEY, INTERIM DIRECTOR, 
CHEMEKETA COOPERATIVE 
REGIONAL LIBRARY SERVICE 

 

CHEMEKETA COMMUNITY COLLEGE   
PO BOX 14007  
4000 LANCASTER DR NE  
SALEM, OR 97309-7070  
Office: 503.315.4268  
Email: dyancey@ccrls.org 
c/o: procurement@chemeketa.edu 

 

 
2) Clause 19) Contact Persons, subsection COLLEGE, is deleted in its entirety and replaced by 

following: 
 

19) Contact Persons 
COLLEGE CCRLS MEMBER LIBRARY 

  
DOUG YANCEY, INTERIM DIRECTOR, 
CHEMEKETA COOPERATIVE 
REGIONAL LIBRARY SERVICE 

 

CHEMEKETA COMMUNITY COLLEGE   
PO BOX 14007  
4000 LANCASTER DR NE  
SALEM, OR 97309-7070  
Office: 503.315.4268  
Email: dyancey@ccrls.org, 
c/o: procurement@chemeketa.edu  

 

 
3) 10426701 Attachment A is deleted in its entirety and replaced by 10426702 Attachment A 

attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. 
 

4) Exhibit #1 to 10426701 Attachment A is deleted in its entirety and replaced by Exhibit #1 to 



 

2 Revised 4/23/2020 md 

10426702 Attachment A attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. 
 

5) 10426701 Attachment B is deleted in its entirety and replaced by 10426702 Attachment B attached 
hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. 

 
6) This amendment is effective upon signature by both parties. 

 
Signatures 

 
Parties concur that all other terms and conditions of the original Agreement, and the terms and 
conditions of any Amendment to the original agreement, shall remain in effect. 
 
In witness whereof, the parties hereto have caused this agreement to be executed on the date set forth 
below, effective as of the date set forth herein. 
 

COLLEGE CCRLS MEMBER LIBRARY 
  

    
(Signature) (Date) Signature of Library Director (Date) 
Miriam Scharer  
Vice President/Chief Financial Officer   
 Name/Title (Typed or Printed) 
  
   
 Signature of Authorized Entity Signer (Date) 
  
 ____________________________________________ 
 Name/Title (Typed or Printed) 

The College is an equal opportunity/affirmative action employer and educational institution committed to an environment free of discrimination and 
harassment. Questions regarding sexual harassment, gender-based discrimination and sexual misconduct policies or wish to file a complaint contact the Title 
IX coordinator at 503.365.4723. For questions about equal employment opportunity and/or affirmative action, contact 503.399.2537. To request this 
publication in an alternative format, please call 503.399.5192. 

 



10426702 Attachment A 
 

Statement of Work/Consideration 

Page 1 Revised 4/29/2020, md 

1) Statement of Work 
 

a) Under this agreement CCRLS MEMBER LIBRARY shall: 
 

1) Provide at least the basic level of service to nonresidents within the COLLEGE District and to nonresident staff 
currently employed with the COLLEGE. Basic level of service is defined as ten checkouts and ten holds per 
person at a time, utilizing individual rather than household cards. 

 
2) Provide free borrowing privileges to card holding residents/patrons of other CCRLS MEMBER LIBRARIES 

(including Silver Falls District) and all currently registered College students who present a valid library card.  
 

3) Ensure that in no case shall card-holding residents of the COLLEGE district receive less than the basic level of 
service from CCRLS MEMBER LIBRARY. 
 

4) CCRLS MEMBER LIBRARY may, at its sole option, elect to provide services to persons incarcerated in 
county, state, or federal jail or prison facilities. CCRLS MEMBER LIBRARY may, at its sole option, elect not 
to allow its owned materials to be circulated to such facilities. 
 

5) Notify each current non-resident cardholder within its geographic zone at least 30 days prior to instituting a fee 
for service above the basic level. No advance notification is necessary for fee increases. 
 

6) Provide reference and information services to patrons of the participating libraries of the CCRLS District in 
cooperation with COLLEGE and other participating libraries. 
 

7) Provide for the regular participation of the library director in meetings of the PYM and as may be necessary in 
meetings of the CCRLS Advisory Council. The COLLEGE depends on member participation. Regular 
participation shall be defined as attendance by the library director at each meeting, unless excused. CCRLS 
MEMBER LIBRARY director’s attendance at the September meeting of the PYM Association is highly 
encouraged. Library directors will have private secure email for communicating confidential COLLEGE 
information. Directors will provide a chain of command to allow coverage in their absence. 
 

8) Provide for the regular participation of library staff at subcommittee meetings and training events provided by 
vendors and/or COLLEGE. The COLLEGE will reimburse mileage at current college rates; roundtrip from 
participating library to the meeting/training. Reimbursement will be made biannually. 

 
9) Assume full responsibility for the accuracy of data at its entry into the automation system database, and for 

updating that data accurately to reflect the proper links to the material in its library. Such data includes, but is 
not limited to ISBN, Barcode number, library location, volume number, call number, copy number, type of 
material, status, etc. 
 

10) Take reasonable measures to protect equipment in CCRLS MEMBER LIBRARY’s possession from abuse, 
theft, and misuse. CCRLS MEMBER LIBRARY shall, while in possession of the computer system hardware, 
including peripheral devices, repair or replace as necessary any such items which are lost, physically damaged, 
or destroyed as a result of fire, theft, vandalism or other sudden and unforeseen occurrence which would be a 
peril insurable under a standard form electronic data processing property insurance policy; provided that 
CCRLS MEMBER LIBRARY shall have no obligation under this paragraph with respect to loss resulting from 
defect in the computer system itself, or from the acts of vandals gaining access to the computer system 
programs. Or data accessed externally and not by the application of physical force to the tangible components of 
the system; and, provided further, that the CCRLS MEMBER LIBRARY shall not be liable under this 
agreement for any consequential damages incident to any loss under this section. 

 
11) Prepare, provide, and maintain the furniture and physical location for installation of automated system terminals 

and equipment in its library. This responsibility includes network, cable installation, electrical power, and 
environment, all meeting industry, manufacturer and vendor specifications. 
 

12) CCRLS MEMBER LIBRARY may purchase equipment and software to expand and enhance its own 
operations; provided that, if any such equipment and software will be linked to the automated system or the 
COLLEGE telecommunications network, COLLEGE shall be notified ahead of time and such equipment and 
software is to be acceptable to the COLLEGE as compatible with the automated system and the COLLEGE 



Page 2  Revised 4/29/2020, md 

telecommunications network. The COLLEGE shall not be responsible for maintenance of CCRLS MEMBER 
LIBRARY equipment, but will configure and ensure the COLLEGE network connectivity. CCRLS MEMBER 
LIBRARY shall not connect or install any such equipment or software without the review and written approval 
of the COLLEGE after at least 90 days prior to notice by CCRLS MEMBER LIBRARY. The COLLEGE may 
remove non-approved equipment from the network at the COLLEGE’s discretion. To facilitate this approval it 
is recommended that CCRLS MEMBER LIBRARY include the COLLEGE in the examination and selection 
process. The COLLEGE cannot be responsible for making equipment and software work if this process is not 
followed. Any computer device connected to the COLLEGE network must have approved anti-virus security 
software and a current, secure Operating System. CCRLS MEMBER LIBRARY will not alter COLLEGE 
network or workstation equipment within their building without communication or direction from the 
COLLEGE. 
 

13) Provide library staff possessing minimum level of technical ability and skill, with available phone access, to 
provide an onsite interface with COLLEGE technical staff. 
 

14) Notify COLLEGE of any desired reductions to the number of CCRLS MEMBER LIBRARY software licenses 
held through group software purchases if at all possible at least three months prior to renewal. 
 

b) Under this agreement COLLEGE shall: 
 

1) Provide for the fiscal and administrative management of the CCRLS 
 

a. Maintain the following: 
 

1. The Chemeketa Cooperative Regional Library Advisory Council hereinafter referred to as the 
CCRLS Advisory Council, through which recommendations on policies of the Service can be 
expressed. The present membership of the CCRLS Advisory Council shall be updated as 
needed and sent electronically for inclusion to all Library Directors and posted on the 
COLLEGE website. 
 

2. An ongoing liaison with Polk, Yamhill and Marion Library Association (PYM) (or their 
executive committee) through which recommendations on procedures and their 
implementation can be expressed. 
 

b. Provide operation and maintenance of the COLLEGE automated system and related databases, 
including: 

1. Maintain bibliographic, circulation, and borrower data in an automated database management 
system. Design, applications, enhancements of, and major changes of operation to the 
automated system database management system shall be subject to review by the PYM 
Technology Committee. 
 

2. Manage the COLLEGE automated system under the terms of this agreement and other 
applicable agreements with vendors and participating library so that CCRLS MEMBER 
LIBRARY has access to its bibliographic, circulation, and borrower records during library 
business hours and at other times as agreed upon between the CCRLS MEMBER LIBRARY 
Director and the CCRLS Executive Director. The management responsibility for the 
automated system includes the obligation of COLLEGE to monitor, evaluate, and create as 
needed entries for new materials and retrospective conversion of cataloging of old materials in 
order to maintain the highest quality bibliographic MARC database. 
 

3. Acquire and provide for effective maintenance and support of all essential present and future, 
central and remote automated system equipment at its own expense; and provide for secure 
installation and housing for automated system except such automated system equipment as is 
acquired by CCRLS MEMBER LIBRARY for installation at its library, or as otherwise 
provided in Attachment A 1) a) 14) of this agreement. 
 

4. Coordinate and assume cost for installation of telecommunications equipment and lines 
needed at CCRLS MEMBER LIBRARY’s central and branch libraries for use with automated 
system. Parties agree that COLLEGE does not control, and therefore cannot warrant, the 
telecommunication networks used to communicate data from a remote site, nor does this 
agreement cover maintenance of telecommunication lines. 
 



Page 3  Revised 4/29/2020, md 

5. Acquire and furnish to CCRLS MEMBER LIBRARY, at COLLEGE’s direct cost, certain 
necessary supplies and services, such as utilities, library cards, bar codes, patron notices, 
storage media, and other supplies except printer paper, cartridges and toner which may be 
required to provide the services of automated system to CCRLS MEMBER LIBRARY. 

 
6. Provide at CCRLS MEMBER LIBRARY’s request, specialized reports not regularly 

generated by automation system. CCRLS MEMBER LIBRARY shall reimburse the 
COLLEGE for the cost of providing such special reports. 
 

7. Coordinate all service, support, equipment purchases and maintenance necessary to the proper 
operation of automated system and enforce rules and standards for use of automated system 
by CCRLS MEMBER LIBRARY. CCRLS MEMBER LIBRARY shall enter, retrieve, 
modify, and delete data in and from automated system in accordance with those rules and 
standards. 
 

8. Maintain agreements for hardware maintenance and software support with current provider of 
library automation service(s). The COLLEGE shall provide reasonable approved maintenance 
and support for automated system hardware and software not provided by automation vendor. 
The COLLEGE shall provide reasonable prior notice to CCRLS MEMBER LIBRARY when 
system operation must be suspended for operational or maintenance requirements. The 
COLLEGE shall exercise its best efforts to schedule such periods of suspension during hours 
when CCRLS MEMBER LIBRARY’s libraries are closed. Except for suspension of operation 
for necessary system maintenance or because security of the COLLEGE automated system 
database or software is compromised or damaged, COLLEGE shall not “lock out” CCRLS 
MEMBER LIBRARY terminals from automated system. 
 

9. Provide, through the COLLEGE, one or more dedicated telephone lines to serve the system, 
and related telecommunication equipment as provided in the agreement with the vendor for 
the automation system, and pay all related installation, acquisition, maintenance, and use cost. 
 

10. Except for equipment and software purchased by CCRLS MEMBER LIBRARY under 
Attachment A 1) a) 14), all automated system hardware, software, and other capital 
equipment shall remain the property of COLLEGE, and CCRLS MEMBER LIBRARY shall 
have no claim thereto other than the right to use thereof under this agreement. 
 

11. The COLLEGE will provide ILL service through OCLC. CCRLS will serve as the Referral 
Center coordinating external loans and mediating borrowing requests from CCRLS 
MEMBER LIBRARY staff. CCRLS MEMBER LIBRARY will be responsible for shipping 
costs and losses of book borrowed. 
 

12. Contract for hosting maintenance and backup of the COLLEGE automated system data. In the 
event of system malfunction or loss of data, the COLLEGE shall promptly arrange for 
restoration of the most recently backed up data to the system once it is again functioning. No 
liability is assumed by the COLLEGE if the automated system experiences down time or loss 
of data, which cannot be recovered. 
 

13. Provide training for at least one CCRLS MEMBER LIBRARY staff person at any time the 
automated system operating systems or procedures are changed, enhanced, or otherwise 
revised. The COLLEGE shall provide up-to-date access to on-line user manuals for CCRLS 
MEMBER LIBRARY’s staff. All other training of CCRLS MEMBER LIBRARY staff shall 
be the responsibility of CCRLS MEMBER LIBRARY. CCRLS MEMBER LIBRARY shall 
designate one staff position responsible for coordinating training and operations matters with 
the COLLEGE staff person responsible for automation system operations. 

 
14. Provide for general maintenance and utilities to support the COLLEGE automated system. 

This obligation includes janitorial service, maintenance painting as necessary, structural 
repairs, lighting and electrical system maintenance, and HVAC maintenance. 
 

15. While providing computer network access to the COLLEGE automated system, repair or 
replace as necessary any such items which are lost, physically damaged, or destroyed as a 
result of fire, theft, vandalism, or other sudden and unforeseen occurrence which would be a 
peril insurable under a standard form electronic data processing property insurance policy; 



Page 4  Revised 4/29/2020, md 

provided that CCRLS MEMBER LIBRARY shall have no obligation under this paragraph 
with the acts of vandals gaining access to the computer system, programs, or data tangible 
components of the system; and, provided further, that CCRLS MEMBER LIBRARY shall not 
be liable under this agreement for any consequential damages incident to any loss covered 
under this section. 
 

16. Provide personnel for the operation of the system. “Operation” includes: use of supplied 
software to generate reports, notices, lists, and similar documents and files; preparation and 
sending of overdue notices, hold notices, reports, billings, and other specified documents 
produced for routine system operation by the vendor(s) of the system and its installation, 
maintenance, or support of software, or the maintenance, repair or replacement of hardware or 
firmware. 
 

17. Through its governing board, retain final authority over the policies and decisions relating to 
budget, operating procedures, system design, participation by other libraries, and other like 
issues of a general policy nature affecting their operation of COLLEGE and automated 
system. The board, however, shall not take such actions without the recommendation of the 
CCRLS Advisory Council. 
 

18. In serving card-holding COLLEGE district nonresident patrons, abide by each CCRLS 
MEMBER LIBRARY’s rules and procedures regarding borrowing privileges. In no case shall 
card-holding residents of the COLLEGE district receive less than the basic level of service 
from COLLEGE. 
 

19. Provide a quarterly financial report to the CCRLS Advisory Council that includes revenue and 
expense information for the quarter and year to date, compared to a) current year budget and 
b) prior year for the same period. The report will be made available to CCRLS MEMBER 
LIBRARY. 
 

20. Reimburse CCRLS MEMBER LIBRARY for library materials borrowed by district non-
residents and college students, faculty, and staff under this agreement and not returned by the 
borrowers within twelve months of due date. CCRLS MEMBER LIBRARY hereby transfers 
and assigns all interests in such materials and replacement charges to the COLLEGE with 
respect thereto. If lost materials are returned, CCRLS MEMBER LIBRARY will reimburse 
the COLLEGE for any lost materials replacement charges paid to the CCRLS MEMBER 
LIBRARY. 
 

21. Provide regular courier service between the participating libraries. 
 

22. May coordinate group purchasing of COLLEGE related equipment, software or non-essential 
supplies, as needed, to assist CCRLS MEMBER LIBRARY and other participants. Charges 
for purchased supplies, equipment, services, maintenance contracts, delivery charges, postage, 
etc. will be billed to CCRLS MEMBER LIBRARY at direct cost and payable to COLLEGE. 
 

23. Coordinate group purchasing of printer and computer management software licenses from 
Envisionware (or subsequent vendor) and will invoice CCRLS MEMBER LIBRARY 
annually for CCRLS MEMBER LIBRARY’s proportionate share of software licenses. 
 

24. Coordinate group purchasing of such COLLEGE related services on behalf of member 
libraries including, but not limited to Debt Collect, ORBIS and Cascade Alliance Courier. 
COLLEGE will invoice CCRLS MEMBER LIBRARY annually or quarterly for the cost of 
these services on a usage basis. 

 
c. Electronic Payments for Fines, Lost Book Charges, or Other Charges 

 
1. Through COLLEGE, collect and process electronic payments for fines, lost book charges, or 

other charges owed to CCRLS MEMBER LIBRARY. 
 

2. Process charges that are paid only through the shared library automation system operated by 
COLLEGE. 
 



Page 5  Revised 4/29/2020, md 

3. COLLEGE shall not be financially responsible to refund corrected charges to a library patron. 
Any dispute of charges is the responsibility of CCRLS MEMBER LIBRARY to resolve with 
the patron. Deductions from the merchant banking account will be deducted from the next 
regular payment to the associated CCRLS MEMBER LIBRARY. 
 

4. Compile and calculate charges on a monthly basis. However, payment to CCRLS MEMBER 
LIBRARY will be made on a quarterly basis. In the event the amount due to CCRLS 
MEMBER LIBRARY is less than $15, the payment may be held for the next quarterly 
payment. 
 

5. Make payment to CCRLS MEMBER LIBRARY in the amount paid on their behalf, minus 
merchant services for the period. Associated fees will be distributed on a pro-rata basis to 
each library based on the percentage of total funds collected that month and total fees that 
month. 
 

6. COLLEGE shall be credited payments for unidentified charges, or for items, which 
COLLEGE has previously reimbursed CCRLS MEMBER LIBRARY. 
 

7. COLLEGE shall acknowledge responsibility only for the amount of any correction without 
penalty. 
 

8. COLLEGE shall, at all times during the term of this agreement, comply with Oregon Revised 
Statutes Chapter 295 and shall deposit any fines, fees, charges, or other payments collected 
pursuant to this agreement in an institution included in the Oregon State Treasurer's list of 
Qualified Depositories for Public Funds. 
  

9. COLLEGE shall, at all times during the term of this agreement, comply with all Payment 
Card Industry Data Security Standards and shall annually provide to CCRLS MEMBER 
LIBRARY a copy of its current PCI compliance certificate, and that of any acquirer, third 
party provider, or processor that is used in providing services pursuant to this agreement. 

 
2) Consideration 

 
a) COLLEGE will compensate CCRLS MEMBER LIBRARY in the amount shown in Exhibit 1 – Compensation Schedule 

for providing nonresident library service for the residents of the COLLEGE District. Payments shall be made in four 
equal installments at the end of each quarter as provided herein. 
 

b) COLLEGE will compensate CCRLS MEMBER LIBRARY for each net loan provided, i.e., the difference between the 
number of CCRLS MEMBER LIBRARY items loaned to and checked out in another CCRLS library and the number of 
items owned by other CCRLS libraries borrowed and checked out by the CCRLS MEMBER LIBRARY. Tabulation of 
net loans shall be provided by the CCRLS automated integrated library system. Each net loan shall be paid in the amount 
shown in Exhibit 1. Payments shall be made quarterly as provided herein. 

 
c) City of Newberg Only: In consideration for participation in the COLLEGE system and in lieu of taxes, since the CCRLS 

MEMBER LIBRARY is outside the area taxed to provide this service, the CCRLS MEMBER LIBRARY shall pay to 
the COLLEGE the sum shown in Exhibit 1 on or before December 15 of each year. 
 

d) The COLLEGE will invoice CCRLS MEMBER LIBRARY for services and licensing provided through group purchases 
quarterly or annually as more specifically described in Section 1) b) 1) b. (Including but not limited to §22, 23, 24) and 
fees described in 1) b) 1).c. 
 

e) Payments made or invoices issued under this agreement, either for full or partial payment, shall reference the COLLEGE 
contract number written herein. 



Exhibit #1 to 10426702 Attachment A 
 

Revised 4/23/2020 md 

 
FY 2020-21 COMPENSATION SCHEDULE  

(July 1, 2020 – June 30, 2021) 
 

Non-Resident Library Service Fee to CCRLS PARTICIPATING ENTITY 
Library by College  
 

Library Amount Quarterly Payment 
AMITY $5,810 $1,452.50 
CHEMEKETA(Chemeketa Community College) $7,388 $1,847.00 
DALLAS $95,342 $23,835.50 
DAYTON $7,913 $1,978.25 
GRAND RONDE TBD – July 1, 2021 
INDEPENDENCE $58,027 $14,506.75 
JEFFERSON $15,305 $3,826.25 
LYONS $10,243 $2,560.75 
MCMINNVILLE $185,230 $46,307.50  
MONMOUTH $56,796 $14,199.00 
MT ANGEL $36,338 $9,084.50 
NEWBERG $82,715 $20,678.75 
SALEM $673,669 $168,417.25 
SHERIDAN $14,400 $3,600.00 
SILVER FALLS (Silver Falls Library District) $76,522 $19,130.50 
STAYTON $106,479 $26,619.75 
WILLAMINA $18,087 $4,521.75 
WOODBURN $85,634 $21,408.50 

 
Net Loan Payment to CCRLS PARTICIPATING ENTITY by College:  The 
net loan payment rate for fiscal year 2020-21 shall be $1.50 per item. 
 
Participation Payment to College (City of Newberg Only):  The participation 
payment to College by the City of Newberg for fiscal year 2020-21 shall be 
$156,648.96. 



10426702 Attachment B 

Advisory Council Members Revised 4/28/2020 

 

2020-2021 CCRLS Council Members 

Tracy Dillon – Chair 
Rural Lay Member  
PO Box 715/18241 SW Willamina Creek RD 
Willamina, OR 97396 
503.876.8358 
dillont@pdx.edu  
♦ Term expires: 6/30/22 
 
Patricia Wallace – Vice Chair 
Marion County Lay Member 
PO BOX 723 
Mt. Angel, OR 97362 
503.845.2248 (w)   
butte75@hotmail.com 
♦ Term expires: 6/30/23 
 
Gretchen Freeman  
Yamhill County Lay Member 
1679 NW Medinah Dr.  
McMinnville, OR 97128  
801.503.7201 (cell)   
mgsfreeman@comcast.net 
♦ Term expires: 6/30/22 
 
Kathleen Schulte  
Polk County Lay Member  
15740 Tarter RD 
Monmouth, OR 97361 
503.838.3925 (h)                
3schulte@gmail.com 
♦ Term expires: 6/30/21 
 
Keith Campbell 
City Manager Representative  
362 N. Third Ave., Stayton, OR 97383 
503-769-3425 
kcampbell@ci.stayton.or.us 
 
Natalie Beach 
Chemeketa Community College Representative 
4000 Lancaster Drive NE/PO Box 14007  
Salem, OR 97309-7070 
503.399.5105 (w)   
natalie.beach@chemeketa.edu 
 
 

Jenny Berg 
PYM Chair Representative  
McMinnville Public Library  
225 NW Adams St., McMinnville, OR 97128 
503-435-5550  jenny.berg@mcminnvilleoregon.gov 
♦ Term expires: 6/30/21 
 
Dillon Peck 
Small Library Representative 
Jefferson Public Library 
150 North 2nd Street, Jefferson, OR 97352 
541-327-3826  dillon.peck@ccrls.org 
♦ Term expires: 6/30/21 
 
Will Worthey 
Medium Library Representative 
Newberg Public Library  
503 East Hancock Street, Newberg, OR 97132 
503-537-1256  will.worthey@newbergoregon.gov 
♦ Term expires: 6/30/21 
 
Sarah Strahl 
Large Library Representative 
Salem Public Library 
1400 Broadway St. NE 
Salem, OR 97301 
503.588.6064 (w)  sstrahl@cityofsalem.net 
 
Ex Officio Members 
Renata Wakeley 
Acting Executive Director 
Mid-Willamette Council of Governments  
100 High Street SE, Suite 200 
Salem, OR 97301  
503.540.1618 (w) renatac@mwvcog.org 
 
Doug Yancey 
Chemeketa Cooperative Regional Library Service 
Interim CCRLS Director 
4000 Lancaster Drive NE/PO Box 14007  
Salem, OR 97309-7070 
503.315.4268 (w)  dyancey@ccrls.org 
 
Jennifer Badzinski – Recording Secretary  
Chemeketa Cooperative Regional Library Service 
503.399.5165 (w)   jennifer.badzinski@ccrls.org 
 

 



 
 

 
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 
 TO: Mayor Henry Porter and the Stayton City Council 

 FROM: Dan Fleishman, Director of Planning and Development 

 DATE: May 18, 2020 

 SUBJECT: Ordinance 1044, Extending Land Use Approvals 
  
 
ISSUE 

The issue before the City Council is the first consideration of an emergency ordinance extending 
the approval period of land use approvals granted through the Land Use and Development 
Code. 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

Section 17.12.120.7 establishes that development approvals granted under the Land Use and 
Development Code are valid for one year.  Then, depending on the type of approval, the 
applicant must either have started construction in the case of a Site Plan Review, Conditional 
Use or Variance application, submitted engineered plans in the case of a subdivision or 
partitioning that involves street construction, or submitted a final plat in the case of a 
subdivision or partitioning that does not involve street construction.   Failure to meet these 
thresholds results in the expiration of the approval. 

Section 17.12.120.8 allows an applicant to receive a one-time extension of up to one-year, if 
they request such an extension prior to the expiration of their approval. 

There are currently five projects that have received Site Plan Approval from the Planning 
Commission that have not expired and have not yet started construction.  The developers of 
one of these projects, the Taco Bell restaurant have informed staff that due to the COVID-19 
pandemic, their bank is advising them not to make any capital investments.  They originally 
received Planning Commission approval in May 2018, effective June 4 of that year and received 
a one-year extension in May 2019.  Their Planning Commission approval will expire on June 4, 
2020 if construction has not commenced.  They have submitted all of the necessary plans for a 
Site Development Permit and their building permit has been reviewed and approved by Marion 
County Building Inspection. 

PROPOSED ORDINANCE 

Ordinance 1044, as presented, would extend the deadline for taking action on a land use 
approval for one year due to the Covid-19 pandemic and the impacts it has had on applicants’ 
ability to move forward on projects.  The ordinance would apply to any land use decision that 
would otherwise expire prior to January 1, 2021 but has not expired already.  The ordinance is 



 
 

an emergency ordinance and will take effect upon enactment by the Council and execution by 
the Mayor. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends enactment of Ordinance 1044 as presented. 

OPTIONS AND MOTIONS 

The City Council is presented with the following options. 

1. Approve the first consideration of Ordinance 1044 

Move to approve Ordinance 1044 as presented. 
The City Recorder shall call the roll and the names of each Councilor present and their vote shall be recorded 
in the meeting minutes. If the vote is unanimous, Ordinance 1044 is enacted and will be presented to the 
Mayor for his approval. 

If the vote is not unanimous, Ordinance 1044will be brought before the Council for a second consideration at 
the June 1, 2020 meeting.  

2. Approve Ordinance 1044 with modifications  

Move to approve Ordinance 1044 with the following changes … and direct staff to 
incorporate these changes into the Ordinance before the Ordinance is presented to the City 
Council for a second consideration. 
The City Recorder shall call the roll and the names of each Councilor present and their vote shall be recorded 
in the meeting minutes. If the first consideration is approved, Ordinance 1038 will be brought before the 
Council for a second consideration at its June 1, 2020 meeting.  

3. Request staff modify Ordinance 1044 prior to the first consideration 

Move to direct staff to incorporate the following changes into Ordinance 1044and bring the 
Ordinance to the June 1 meeting for a first consideration… 

4. Take no action 

No motion is necessary.  

 





1

Dan Fleishman

From: Paul Hartmann <phartmann@santiamhospital.org>

Sent: Wednesday, May 13, 2020 8:59 AM

To: Dan Fleishman

Cc: Maggie Hudson

Subject: Site Plan Approval

Dan 
 
Thanks for looking out for us. We appreciate that the city staff has proposed an ordinance to keep these projects open, 
We would also like to request that our  Site Plan approval be extended one year.   
 
 
 
Paul Hartmann     EMT-Paramedic 
Director of Facilities and Purchasing 
Santiam Hospital 
(503) 769-9210 |  phartmann@santiamhospital.org 

 
The materials and information in this email are private and may contain Protected Health Information.  
If you are not the intended recipient, be advised that any unauthorized use, disclosure, copying,  
distribution or the taking of any action associated with the contents of this information is strictly  
prohibited. If you have received this email in error, please notify the sender via email. 
 
 







 

 

Ordinance No. 1044 Extension of Land Use Approvals Page 1 of 2 

ORDINANCE NO. 1044 
 

AN ORDINANCE RELATING TO APPROVED LAND USE DECISIONS, AND 
DECLARING AN EMERGENCY 

 WHEREAS, Stayton Municipal Code (SMC), Section 17.12.120.7 establishes certain deadlines 
for construction to start, after which an approval granted under the Land Use and Development Code shall 
expire; 

WHEREAS, SMC Section 17.12.120.8 allows for a one-time one-year extension of those 
deadlines;   

 WHEREAS, the COVID-19 worldwide pandemic has resulted in economic disruption and 
Declarations of Emergency by federal, state and local officials, including the City of Stayton; 

 WHEREAS, there are a number of development projects within the City of Stayton that have 
received land use approval from the Stayton Planning Commission, and have also received the one-time 
one-year extension; 

 WHEREAS, expiration of the land use approvals for these projects would result in unnecessary 
costs and further delays from having to resubmit applications for approval; and 

 WHEREAS, it is appropriate that an emergency be declared as to the enactment of this Ordinance 
as it is necessary for the immediate preservation of the public peace, health and safety, and due to the 
pending expiration of certain land use approvals, this Ordinance shall take effect on its passage so that it 
is in full force and effect immediately from and after its enactment by the Stayton City Council. 

NOW THEREFORE, the City of Stayton ordains: 

Section 1.  Purpose.  Land Use decisions within the City of Stayton may expire as the Land Use and 
Development Code sets out a particular "effective period" from the date of approval of the development 
project. Due to the current unforeseen and unprecedented economic and financial disruptions resulting 
from the worldwide pandemic, financing for many approved development projects within the City limits 
is difficult to obtain. This Ordinance is intended to extend the time that an approved land use decision 
remains effective, before actions otherwise required by the Land Use and Development Code for the 
developer to complete the development are complete. 

Section 2.  Definitions.  For purposes of this ordinance only, the following definitions apply: 

a) “Land Use and Development Code" means Title 17 of the Stayton Municipal Code. 

b) “Approved Land Use Decision" means any decision made under the authority of the Land Use and 
Development Code, by any appropriate level of decision maker, which has not expired or otherwise 
terminated prior to the effective date of this ordinance. 

c) “Effective period" means any period of time established in the Land Use and Development Code after 
which an approved land use decision could expire, regardless of the language describing the period of 
time in the Land Use and Development Code. 

Section 3.  Extension of Effective period.  

a) The effective period of any Approved Land Use Decision is extended by one additional calendar year. 

b) This extension is in addition to, and not in place of, any other extension allowed by the text of the 
Land Use and Development Code, so long as the extension is also consistent with subsection d), 
below. 

c) This extension does not apply to projects approved after the effective date of this ordinance. 



 

 

Ordinance No. 1044 Extension of Land Use Approvals Page 2 of 2 

d) This extension applies only to those Approved Land Use Decisions which would otherwise expire 
prior to January 1, 2021, but which have not expired as of the effective date of this ordinance 

Section 4.  This ordinance shall take effect immediately upon its passage by the City Council and its 
approval by the Mayor. 
 
ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL this 18th day of May, 2020. 
 
 

 CITY OF STAYTON 

 

Signed: ____________, 2020 BY: _______________________________ 
 Henry A Porter, Mayor 

 

Signed: ____________, 2020 ATTEST: _______________________________ 
 Keith D. Campbell, City Administrator 

 



 

 
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 
TO:   Mayor Henry Porter and the Stayton City Council 
 
FROM:  Alissa Angelo, Administrative Services Manager 
 
DATE:   May 18, 2020 
 
SUBJECT:  Resolution No. 1004, Adopting the City of Stayton Employee 

Handbook and Repealing Resolutions Related to the Current 
Personnel Manual 

  
     
ISSUE 

The issue before City Council is the adoption of a new City of Stayton Employee Handbook. 
 
ENCLOSURE(S) 

• April 21, 2020 email to City staff regarding Proposed Stayton Employee Handbook 
• Resolution No. 1004 – Adopting the City of Stayton Employee Handbook and Repealing 

Resolutions Related to the Current Personnel Manual 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

Based on staff research, the current Personnel Manual in place for City of Stayton Employees 
was originally enacted in July 1990. Over the last 30 years, several amendments and updates 
were made to the document through Council resolutions.  
 
City staff began working with our Human Resources consultant on developing and 
implementing a new Employee Handbook that applies best practices and current employment 
law. Once the initial draft was completed, we collaborated with both our City labor attorney 
and the Human Resources representative from City-County Insurance Services (CIS) for the City 
of Stayton.  
 
Enclosed is the final product. Due to recent employment law changes, it is imperative we 
implement the new handbook as soon as possible. Our No-Harassment Policy has been updated 
to include language required under 479 and SB 726, both of which were signed into law in 
2019. These went into effect January 1, 2020.  
 
Following the April 20, 2020 City Council meeting, staff shared the proposed handbook with 
City staff, requesting a response no later than Wednesday, April 29th at 5:00 p.m. Staff did not 
receive any material inquiries or responses.  
 



 

MOTION(S) 

1) Motion to approve Resolution No. 1004 as presented. 

2) Motion to amend Resolution No. 1004 as follows…  



1

Alissa Angelo

From: Alissa Angelo
Sent: Tuesday, April 21, 2020 12:12 PM
To: !City Hall Staff; !Library Staff; !Public Works Staff; !Police Department Staff; !Pool
Subject: Proposed New Employee Handbook
Attachments: Proposed Stayton Employee Handbook.pdf

Good morning everyone, 
 
Attached you will find a copy of the new proposed Employee Handbook.  
 
If you are an AFSCME or SPOA member (or eligible to join a union), those union contracts would be your first reference. 
Generally, items not covered in your appropriate union contract would be covered by this Employee Handbook. Also, 
please understand State and Federal laws do change from time to time and may not be reflected in the union contracts 
due to length of time in between negotiations.  
 
Please review and respond with any comments or questions by Wednesday, April 29th at 5:00 p.m. 
 
Thank you,  

Alissa Angelo 
Administrative Services Manager 
City of Stayton 
(503) 769‐3425 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 1004 
 

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE CITY OF STAYTON EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK AND REPEALING 
RESOLUTIONS RELATED TO THE CURRENT PERSONNEL MANUAL 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Stayton Employee Handbook is intended to increase understanding, 
eliminate the need for personal decisions on matters of City-wide policies, protect the City 
against litigation pertaining to employment law, and help to assure uniformity throughout the 
organization;  
 
WHEREAS, from time to time it is necessary to amend these policies and procedures to stay 
current with existing employment law and best practices; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City desires to update its personnel policies related to recent legal updates and 
best practices. 

      
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT: 
 

SECTION 1. Resolution No. 499, Resolution No. 527, Resolution No. 534, Resolution No. 
576, Resolution No. 616, Resolution No. 785, Resolution No. 879, Resolution No. 895, 
and Resolution No. 939 are hereby repealed.  
 
SECTION 2. The City of Stayton Employee Handbook (Exhibit A) is hereby adopted. 
 

This Resolution shall become effective upon its adoption by the Stayton City Council. 
 

ADOPTED BY THE STAYTON CITY COUNCIL THIS 18TH DAY OF MAY, 2020. 
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 
 
Signed: ___________, 2020 By: ____________________________________________ 
      Mayor Henry A. Porter, Mayor 
 
 
Signed: ___________, 2020  ATTEST: _______________________________________ 

    Keith D. Campbell, City Manager 
 
 
 



 
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
Employee Handbook 

Effective *insert date* per Resolution No. 1004 



 
 

Welcome! 
Welcome to your position with the City of Stayton! We are located 14 miles southeast of Salem, on 
Highway 22. Stayton was established in 1872 and incorporated in 1891. It is south of Sublimity and east 
of Aumsville. Located on the North Santiam River, Stayton is a regional agricultural and light 
manufacturing center. The population was 7,870 in 2019. Stayton is governed by a Mayor and 5-member, 
at-large, City Council. The City operates under a Council/Manager form of government.  
 
The City of Stayton is a community that strives to work as a team, collaborate with partners, and support 
a strong interest and commitment to volunteerism.  
 
As a member of the City team, you are joining a group of talented and dedicated individuals. Your work, 
and that of your fellow employees, is critical to the continued delivery of great service and sustaining the 
unique qualities that make Stayton a wonderful place to live, work, and play. Regardless of the position 
you hold or the Department you work for, your efforts matter. As a City employee it is expected that you 
will strive to achieve excellence, be willing to always do your very best, act ethically, and continually look 
for ways to improve. Our actions should be driven by the philosophy of always doing what is best for our 
community. I look forward to working with you and hope that you will find your career with the City both 
enjoyable and rewarding.    
 
If I can be of any assistance to you, or if you have suggestions for improvement, feel free to call me or stop 
by my office.  
 
Keith D. Campbell  
City Manager  
 
Settling In  
We want you to be comfortable saying “I don’t know.” At times, we all may run across situations where 
the right choice is unclear or there is conflicting information. If you are ever not sure about something, 
always ask before acting. Your supervisor is likely the best person to speak to because they know your 
department and your situation. You may also contact Human Resources to seek guidance regarding any 
policy in this handbook or to report your concerns.  
 
We’re proud of our relaxed environment and committed long-time employees, but we have to say it here 
at least once, violating any policy in this handbook can lead to disciplinary action, up to and including 
possible separation of employment.  
 
Collective Bargaining Agreement  
In the event of a conflict between these policies and any valid collective bargaining agreement, authorized 
employment agreement, City code, or state or federal law, the terms and conditions of the collective 
bargaining agreement, employment agreement, ordinance, or law will apply. In all other cases, the policies 
in this Handbook will apply.  
 
About This Handbook  
This Handbook is designed to provide you with general information about working for the City of Stayton; 
you should keep this handbook handy as an ongoing reference. If you need to know something that isn’t 
covered here, or if you have questions about anything you are about to read, just ask. Reach out to your 
supervisor or to Human Resources.  Unless we note otherwise in a particular section, these policies are 
meant to apply to all employees, volunteers, and elected officials of the City. 



 
 

Contents 
I. EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY (EEO) POLICIES ......................................................................... 1 

A. No-Discrimination Policy .................................................................................................................. 1 

B. No-Harassment Policy ...................................................................................................................... 1 

C. Disability Accommodation Policy ..................................................................................................... 5 

D. Reporting Improper or Unlawful Conduct — No Retaliation .......................................................... 5 

II. Employment Status ................................................................................................................................ 7 

A. Introductory Period of Employment ................................................................................................ 7 

B. Employee Classification ................................................................................................................... 7 

C. The Workweek ................................................................................................................................. 8 

D. Meal Periods and Rest Breaks.......................................................................................................... 8 

E. Rest Breaks for Expression of Breast Milk ....................................................................................... 8 

F. Overtime .......................................................................................................................................... 9 

G. Timekeeping Requirements ........................................................................................................... 10 

H. Travel/Expenses Reimbursements ................................................................................................. 10 

I. Payroll Policies ............................................................................................................................... 11 

J. Reporting Changes to an Employee’s Personal Data ..................................................................... 11 

K. Performance Reviews and Step Increases ..................................................................................... 12 

III. Time Off and Leaves of Absence ......................................................................................................... 14 

A. Attendance and Punctuality .......................................................................................................... 14 

B. Vacation ......................................................................................................................................... 14 

C. Sick Leave ....................................................................................................................................... 15 

D. Holidays and Floating Holidays ...................................................................................................... 17 

E. Family Medical Leave ..................................................................................................................... 18 

F. Personal Leave ............................................................................................................................... 24 

G. Bereavement Leave ....................................................................................................................... 24 

H. Jury and Witness Duty ................................................................................................................... 25 

I. Religious Observances Leave and Accommodation Policy ............................................................ 25 

J. Crime Victim Leave Policy .............................................................................................................. 26 

K. Domestic Violence Leave and Accommodation Policy .................................................................. 26 

L. Military Leave ................................................................................................................................. 27 

IV. Employee Benefits ............................................................................................................................... 28 

A. Healthcare Benefits ........................................................................................................................ 28 



 
 

B. Retirement ..................................................................................................................................... 28 

C. Long-Term Disability (LTD) ............................................................................................................. 28 

D. Life Insurance ................................................................................................................................. 29 

E. Flexible Spending Account (FSA) .................................................................................................... 29 

F. Employee Assistance Program (EAP) ............................................................................................. 29 

G. Conference, Conventions & Civic Involvement ............................................................................. 29 

H. Workers’ Compensation and Safety on the Job ............................................................................ 30 

V. Miscellaneous Policies ......................................................................................................................... 32 

A. Alcohol/Drug Use, Abuse, and Testing Policy ................................................................................ 32 

B. Cellular Devices Policy ................................................................................................................... 35 

C. Use of City of Stayton Email and Electronic Equipment, Facilities and Services ........................... 36 

D. Social Media ................................................................................................................................... 38 

E. Confidential City of Stayton Information ....................................................................................... 39 

F. Ethics .............................................................................................................................................. 39 

G. Open-Door Policy ........................................................................................................................... 40 

H. Outside Employment ..................................................................................................................... 41 

I. Criminal Arrests and Convictions ................................................................................................... 41 

J. Political Activity .............................................................................................................................. 42 

K.  Bad Weather/Emergency Closing .................................................................................................. 42 

L. Driving While on Business .............................................................................................................. 43 

M. Workplace Violence ....................................................................................................................... 43 

N. Workplace Inspections — No Right to Privacy or Confidentiality ................................................. 44 

O. Smoke-Free Workplace .................................................................................................................. 44 

VI. Discipline .............................................................................................................................................. 45 

A. Workplace Rules and Prohibited Conduct ..................................................................................... 45 

B. Retirement or Resignation from Employment .............................................................................. 46 

C. References ..................................................................................................................................... 47 

Acknowledgement of Receipt of Employee Handbook .............................................................................. 48 

 

 



 
 

CITY OF STAYTON EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK       Page 1 of 48 

I. EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY (EEO) POLICIES 
Members of management, elected officials, volunteers, interns, and employees alike are expected to 
adhere to and enforce the following EEO Policies.  Any employee’s failure to do so may result in 
discipline, up to and including termination. 

All employees are encouraged to discuss these EEO Policies with the Human Resources (HR) 
representative at any time if they have questions relating to the issues of harassment, discrimination 
or bullying. 

A. No-Discrimination Policy  
City of Stayton provides equal employment opportunity to all qualified employees and applicants 
without unlawful regard to race, color, religion, gender, sexual orientation, national origin, age, 
disability, genetic information, veteran status, or any other status protected by applicable federal, 
Oregon, or local law. This EEO policy applies to all aspects of the employment relationship — 
including but not limited to, recruitment, hiring, compensation, promotion, demotion, transfer, 
disciplinary action, layoff, recall, and termination of employment. 

B. No-Harassment Policy 
City of Stayton prohibits harassment of any kind in the workplace, or harassment outside of the 
workplace that violates its employees’ right to work in a harassment-free workplace.  Specifically, 
City of Stayton prohibits harassment or discrimination related to an individual’s race, color, 
religion, gender, sexual orientation, national origin, age, disability, genetic information, veteran 
status, or any other protected status or activity recognized under Oregon, federal or local law. 

Each employee (especially each member of management) is responsible for creating an 
atmosphere free of discrimination, harassment, and bullying.  Further, all employees are 
responsible for respecting the rights of other employees and refraining from engaging in conduct 
prohibited by this policy, regardless of the circumstances, and regardless of whether others 
participate in the conduct or did not appear to be offended. All employees are encouraged to 
discuss this policy with their immediate supervisor, any member of the management team, or the 
HR representative at any time if they have questions relating to the issues of discrimination, 
harassment, or bullying. 

This policy applies to and prohibits sexual or other forms of harassment that occur during working 
hours, during City of Stayton-related or sponsored trips (such as conferences or work-related 
travel), and during off-hours when that off-duty conduct creates an unlawful hostile work 
environment for any of City of Stayton’s employees, or reflects poorly upon the City, or 
jeopardizes the public’s trust in the City. Such harassment is prohibited, whether committed by 
City of Stayton employees or by non-employees, such as elected public officials, volunteers, 
interns, members of the community, and vendors.  

Sexual Harassment 

Sexual harassment includes unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual favors, or other 
verbal or physical conduct of a sexual nature (regardless of whether such conduct is “welcome”), 
when: 

1. Submission to such conduct is made either implicitly or explicitly a term or condition of 
employment; 



 
 

CITY OF STAYTON EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK       Page 2 of 48 

2. Submission to or rejection of such conduct by an individual is used as the basis for 
employment decisions affecting such individual; or 

3. Such conduct has the purpose or effect of unreasonably interfering with an individual’s work 
performance or creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive work environment. 

Some examples of conduct that could give rise to sexual harassment are unwanted sexual 
advances; demands for sexual favors in exchange for favorable treatment or continued 
employment; sexual jokes; flirtations; advances or propositions; verbal abuse of a sexual nature; 
comments about an individual’s body, sexual prowess, or deficiency; talking about your sex life or 
asking others questions about theirs; leering or whistling; unwelcome touching or assault; sexually 
suggestive, insulting, or obscene comments or gestures; displays of sexually suggestive objects or 
pictures; making derogatory remarks about alternative lifestyles, including comments about 
individuals who are gay, lesbian, bisexual or transgender; or discriminatory treatment based on 
sex.  

This is not a complete list.  All employees are expected to exercise common sense and refrain 
from other similar kinds of conduct. 

Other Forms of Prohibited Harassment 

City of Stayton policy also prohibits harassment against an individual based on the individual’s 
race, color, religion, national origin, age, sexual orientation, marital status, disability, protected 
activity, and any other status protected by applicable law. 

Such harassment may include verbal, written or physical conduct that denigrates or shows 
hostility towards an individual because of any protected status, and can include: 

• Jokes, pictures (including drawings), epithets, or slurs;  
• Negative stereotyping;   
• Displaying racist symbols anywhere on City of Stayton property; 
• “Teasing” or mimicking the characteristics of someone with a physical or mental disability; 
• Criticizing or making fun of another person’s religious beliefs, or “pushing” your religious 

beliefs on someone who doesn’t have them; 
• Threatening, intimidating, or hostile acts that relate to a protected class or protected 

activity; or  
• Written or graphic material that denigrates or shows hostility or aversion toward an 

individual or group because of the protected status. 

This is not a complete list.  All employees are expected to exercise common sense and refrain 
from other similar kinds of conduct. 

Bullying 

The City of Stayton strives to promote a positive, professional work environment free of physical 
or verbal harassment, “bullying,” or discriminatory conduct of any kind. The City of Stayton, 
therefore, prohibits employees from bullying one another or engaging in any conduct that is 
unprofessional, aggressive, disrespectful, or insubordinate. For purposes of this policy, “bullying” 
refers to the purposeful, targeted, and malicious repeated, actions or words of individuals (or a 
group) directed towards an individual or a group of employees, which is intended to intimidate or 
isolate the employee(s) and that creates an inhospitable or hostile work environment. Examples 
of bullying include: 



 
 

CITY OF STAYTON EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK       Page 3 of 48 

1. Examples of Verbal Bullying: Slandering, ridiculing or maligning a person or his/her family; 
persistent name calling which is hurtful, insulting or humiliating; using a person as the 
basis of a punchline for jokes; abusive and offensive remarks. 

2. Examples of Physical Bullying: Pushing; shoving; kicking; poking; tripping; assault, or 
threat of physical assault; damage to a person’s work area or property.  Impeding or 
blocking a person’s transit. 

3. Examples of Gesture Bullying: Non-verbal threatening gestures. 

4. Examples of Exclusion Bullying: Purposefully socially or physically excluding or isolating a 
person in work-related activities. In some cases, failing to be cooperative and working 
well with co-workers may be viewed as bullying. 

5. Examples of Cyber Bullying: Bullying that takes place using electronic technology, which 
includes devices and equipment such as cell phones, computers, and tablets as well as 
communication tools including social media sites, text messages, chat, and websites.  
Examples of cyberbullying include transmitting or showing mean-spirited text messages, 
emails, embarrassing pictures, videos or graphics, rumors sent by email or posted on 
social networking sites, or creating fake profiles on web sites for co-workers, managers or 
supervisors, or elected officials. 

Internal Complaints and Investigations 

Any employee who experiences or observes any conduct that they believe constitutes 
harassment, discrimination, or bullying, or who receives information about these types of 
incidents, should immediately report the matter to the HR.  If the employee is unable to reach the 
HR Representative, he or she should report the matter to the City Manager. The City of Stayton 
encourages all employees who experience or observe workplace harassment to document the 
event(s), associated date(s), and potential witnesses related to the incident. In addition, 
employees are encouraged to tell the harasser that the behavior is offensive and unwanted, and 
that they want it to stop. 

All complaints and reports will be promptly reviewed and may be investigated. The investigation 
may include individual interviews with the parties involved and, where necessary, with individuals 
who may have observed the event(s) or may have other relevant knowledge. The HR 
Representative shall create a file containing records of all complaints, interviews, and materials 
related to each alleged incident of workplace harassment. Human Resources shall maintain such 
records in accordance with the Oregon Public Records Law under ORS 192.311 to 192.478.  

Complaints will be kept confidential to the extent possible, consistent with the City of Stayton’s 
need to investigate the complaint and address the situation and public records law. However, a 
victim of workplace harassment may voluntarily disclose information regarding an incident of 
workplace harassment that involves him or her. If conduct in violation of this policy is found to 
have occurred, the City of Stayton will take prompt, appropriate corrective action, and any 
employee found to have violated this policy will be subject to disciplinary action, up to and 
including termination of employment.  Following receipt of a complaint, management will follow-
up every three (3) months for a year to ensure that harassment has stopped and that no 
retaliation has occurred. However, employees are not required to wait for the management 
follow-up described above to share information related to the incident. An employee may waive 
or discontinue the management follow-up process by informing the City of Stayton of his or her 
intent to do so in writing.  



 
 

CITY OF STAYTON EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK       Page 4 of 48 

External Complaint Procedures 
The City of Stayton encourages employees to submit complaints within the organization, but 
understands that employees may prefer to address prohibited conduct through external 
processes. The following paragraphs provide employees with information about options available 
to file external complaints.  

• Oregon Bureau of Labor and Industries (BOLI) complaint resolution process under 
ORS 659A.820 to 659A.865. An employee must file a complaint under ORS 659A.820 
with BOLI within five (5) years of the alleged harassment. If BOLI concludes that a 
violation occurred, potential administrative remedies include enforceable settlement 
agreements, cease and desist orders, and imposition of civil penalties on the party 
responsible for the violation. More information is available on BOLI’s webpage at: 
https://www.oregon.gov/BOLI/pages/index.aspx 
 

• Civil or Criminal Action.  In these circumstances, a Notice of Claim must be provided 
to us in accordance with ORS 30.275. An employee must a file civil action under ORS 
659A.885 alleging a violation of ORS 659A.030, 659A.082, 659A.112, or SB 479 Section 
4 within five (5) years of the alleged violation. Potential judicial remedies for a 
successful action under ORS 659A.885 include injunctive relief, equitable relief as the 
court deems appropriate, compensatory or punitive damages, and imposition of civil 
penalties on the party responsible for the violation.  

Additional Employee Support—Equal Employment Opportunity 
Employees may choose to use other support services throughout and following instances related 
to concerns and complaints.  The organization provides the following for additional assistance: 

• Employee Assistance Program (EAP) (See section IV. Employee Benefits, section F 
“Employee Assistance Program.” 

Protection against Retaliation 

The City of Stayton prohibits retaliation in any way against an employee because the employee 
has made a good-faith complaint pursuant to this policy or the law, has reported (in good faith) 
harassing, discriminatory, or bullying conduct, or has participated in an investigation of such 
conduct. Any employee who is found to have retaliated against another employee in violation of 
this policy will be subject to disciplinary action up to and including termination of employment. 

This policy is not intended to protect an employee from the consequences of his or her own 
misconduct or inadequate performance simply by reporting the misconduct or inadequate 
performance.  Furthermore, an employee is not entitled to protections under this policy if the City 
of Stayton determines that the report was known to be false, or information was disclosed with 
reckless disregard for its truth or falsity.  If such a determination is made, an employee may be 
subject to discipline up to and including termination of employment. 

See also the Reporting Improper and Unlawful Activity Policy, below. 

https://www.oregon.gov/BOLI/pages/index.aspx


 
 

CITY OF STAYTON EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK       Page 5 of 48 

C. Disability Accommodation Policy  
The City of Stayton is committed to complying fully with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) 
and Oregon’s disability accommodation and anti-discrimination laws. We are also committed to 
ensuring equal opportunity in employment for qualified persons with disabilities. 

Accommodations 

The City of Stayton will make reasonable efforts to accommodate a qualified applicant or 
employee with a known disability, unless such accommodation creates an undue hardship on the 
operation of the City of Stayton.  

Requesting an Accommodation 

A reasonable accommodation is any change or adjustment to a job or work environment that does 
not cause an undue hardship on the department or unit (or, in some cases, the City of Stayton) 
and that permits a qualified applicant or employee with a disability to participate in the job 
application process, to perform the essential functions of a job, or to enjoy benefits and privileges 
of employment equal to those enjoyed by employees without disabilities. For example, a 
reasonable accommodation may include providing or modifying equipment or devices, 
reassigning an individual, adjusting or modifying examinations or training materials, providing 
readers and interpreters, or making the workplace readily accessible to and usable by people with 
disabilities. 

Employees should request an accommodation as soon as it becomes apparent that a reasonable 
accommodation may be necessary to enable the employee to perform the essential duties of a 
position. All requests for accommodation should be made with the supervisor and should specify 
which essential functions of the employee’s job cannot be performed without a reasonable 
accommodation. In most cases, an employee will need to secure medical verification of his or her 
need for a reasonable accommodation. 

D. Reporting Improper or Unlawful Conduct — No Retaliation 
Employees may report reasonable concerns about the City of Stayton’s compliance with any law, 
regulation or policy, using one of the methods identified in this policy.  The City of Stayton will not 
retaliate against employees who disclose information that the employee reasonably believes is 
evidence of: 

• A violation of any federal, Oregon, or local law, rules or regulations by the City of 
Stayton;   

• Mismanagement, gross waste of funds, abuse of authority, or substantial and specific 
danger to public health resulting from action of the City of Stayton; 

• A substantial and specific danger to public health and safety resulting from actions of 
the City of Stayton; or 

• The fact that a recipient of government services is subject to a felony or misdemeanor 
arrest warrant. 

Employee Reporting Options 

In addition to the City of Stayton’s Open-Door Policy (see section G), employees who wish to 
report improper or unlawful conduct should first talk to his or her supervisor.  If you are not 
comfortable speaking with your supervisor, or you are not satisfied with your supervisor’s 
response, you are encouraged to speak with the HR representative. Supervisors are required to 



 
 

CITY OF STAYTON EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK       Page 6 of 48 

inform the HR representative about reports of improper or unlawful conduct they receive from 
employees.   

Reports of unlawful or improper conduct will be kept confidential to the extent allowed by law 
and consistent with the need to conduct an impartial and efficient investigation and public records 
law. 

If the City of Stayton were to prohibit, discipline, or threaten to discipline an employee for 
engaging in an activity described above, the employee may file a complaint with the Oregon 
Bureau of Labor and Industries or bring a civil action in court to secure all remedies provided for 
under Oregon law.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

CITY OF STAYTON EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK       Page 7 of 48 

II. Employment Status 
 
This Section does not apply to volunteers or elected officials unless specifically stated within the 
subsection. 

A. Introductory Period of Employment 
All new employees, including current employees who are promoted within the City of Stayton, 
are hired into an introductory training period that generally lasts no less than 180 days for part-
time employees and 360 days for full-time employees. The introductory period is an extension of 
the employee selection process. During this period, you are considered to be in training and under 
observation and evaluation by your supervisor.  Evaluation of your adjustment to work tasks, 
conduct and other work rules, attendance and job responsibilities will be considered during the 
introductory period. This period gives you an opportunity to demonstrate satisfactory 
performance for the position, and also provides an opportunity to determine if your knowledge, 
skills and abilities and the requirements of the position match. It is also an opportunity for you to 
decide if the City of Stayton meets your expectations of an employer. 

At or before the end of the introductory period, a decision about your employment status will be 
made. The City of Stayton will decide whether to: (1) Extend your introductory period; (2) Move 
you to regular, full-time or regular, part-time status; or (3) Terminate your employment after 
providing you with notice of the performance concerns and an opportunity to comment on the 
concerns.   

Employees are not guaranteed any length of employment upon hire or promotion; both you and 
City of Stayton may terminate the employment relationship during the introductory period for 
any lawful reason. Further, completion of the introductory period or continuation of employment 
after the introductory period does not entitle you to remain employed by City of Stayton for any 
definite period of time. Both you and City of Stayton are free to terminate the employment 
relationship, at any time, with or without notice and for any reason not prohibited by law.  

  

B. Employee Classification 
City of Stayton classifies employees as follows: 

1. Regular Full-time:  Employment in an established position requiring 40 hours or more of 
work per week. Generally, full-time employees are eligible to participate in City of 
Stayton’s benefit programs. 

2. Regular Part-time:  Employment requiring less than 30 hours of work per week. Normally 
a part-time schedule, such as portions of days or weeks, will be established. Occasional 
workweeks of over 40 hours will not constitute a change in status from part-time to full-
time. Regular, part-time employees are not eligible for benefits except those mandated 
by applicable law, or expressly provided within this policy.  

3. Temporary:  Employment in a job established for a specific purpose, for a specific period 
of time, or for the duration of a specific project or group of assignments. Temporary 
employment can either be full-time or part-time. Temporary employees are not eligible 
for benefits other than those mandated by applicable law. 



 
 

CITY OF STAYTON EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK       Page 8 of 48 

Additionally, all employees are defined by federal and Oregon law as either “exempt” or “non-
exempt,” which determines whether the employee is eligible for overtime and other federal law 
protections. Employees will be instructed as to whether they are exempt or non-exempt at the 
time of hire or when a promotion or demotion occurs.  All employees, regardless of employment 
classification, are subject to all City of Stayton rules and procedures unless covered by a CBA or 
employment agreement that provides different rules or procedures. 

C. The Workweek 
Our workweek is from Monday from 12:00 a.m. to Sunday at 11:59 p.m.  Supervisors will advise 
employees of the times their schedules will normally begin and end. Staffing needs and 
operational demands may necessitate variations in starting and ending times, as well as variations 
in the total hours that may be scheduled each day and week. The hours of employment for each 
employee will be fixed by the department heads with regard to convenience of the public.  

D. Meal Periods and Rest Breaks 
Each workday, non-exempt employees who work more than six hours in one work period are 
provided with two rest periods of 15 minutes in length. To the extent possible, rest periods will 
be provided in the middle of work periods. Since this time is counted and paid as time worked, 
you must not be absent from your work station beyond the allotted rest period time.  

All employees who work more than six hours in one work period are provided with one meal 
period of one hour in length each workday. You will be relieved of all active responsibilities and 
restrictions during meal periods and will not be compensated for that time. 

E. Rest Breaks for Expression of Breast Milk  
The City of Stayton will provide reasonable rest periods to accommodate an employee who needs 
to express milk for her child eighteen (18) months of age or younger. If possible, the employee 
will take the rest periods to express milk at the same time as the rest breaks or meal periods that 
are otherwise provided to the employee. If not possible, the employee may take her break during 
a non-scheduled rest break or meal period. 

The City of Stayton will treat the rest breaks used by the employee for expressing milk as paid rest 
breaks up to the amount of time the City of Stayton is required to provide as paid rest breaks 
and/or meal periods under applicable personnel rules or collective bargaining agreements. 
Additional time needed beyond the paid rest breaks and/or meal periods may be taken as unpaid 
time. 

If an employee takes unpaid rest breaks, the City of Stayton may, at the discretion of the 
employee’s supervisor, allow the employee to work before or after her normal shift to make up 
the amount of time used during the unpaid rest periods. The City of Stayton will allow, but not 
require, an employee to substitute paid leave time for unpaid rest periods taken in accordance 
with this rule. 

The City of Stayton will make a reasonable effort to provide the employee with a private location 
within close proximity to the employee’s work area to express milk.   

Notice 

An employee who intends to express milk during work hours must give their supervisor 
reasonable oral or written notice of her intention to do so in order to allow the City of Stayton 
time to make any preparations necessary for compliance with this rule. 



 
 

CITY OF STAYTON EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK       Page 9 of 48 

Storage 

Employees are responsible for storing expressed milk. Employees may bring a cooler or other 
insulated food container to work for storing the expressed milk. If an office provides access to 
refrigeration for personal use, an employee who expresses milk during work hours may use the 
available refrigeration. 

F. Overtime 
There will be busy seasons when operating requirements or other needs cannot be met during 
regular working hours. This means employees may be required to work overtime. All overtime 
work must be preapproved by your supervisor in advance.  

Overtime and compensatory time off for all non-FLSA exempt employees are covered by the 
following guidelines:  

• No employee will work in excess of the following limits unless approval is granted by the 
employee's supervisor: 

o Eight (8) hours in one day; or  

o Ten (10) hours in one day if the employee is working on a regularly scheduled ten-
hour shift; or  

o Forty (40) hours in one week; or  

o One-hundred seventy-one (171) hours in a 28-day period (police officers only).  

• When budgeted funds are available for approved overtime, the City of Stayton will pay an 
employee at one and one-half times his/her regular hourly rate of pay. For employees 
working a regular ten (10) hour work day, overtime will be calculated based on hours 
worked in excess of ten (10) hours in any one day.  

• If budgeted funds are not available for the payment of overtime and it is consistent with 
the needs of the City of Stayton, such overtime may, at the Department Head’s discretion, 
be granted in “compensatory paid time off” at the rate of one and one-half times the 
overtime hours worked.  

• Overtime and compensatory time off will be computed and rounded up to the nearest 
one quarter hour.  

• Compensatory time accumulation will not ordinarily exceed forty (40) hours. All 
compensatory time accumulated over forty (40) hours will be converted to overtime pay 
the following payday unless a written exception to accumulate more than forty hours is 
granted by the department head.  

• An employee may request compensatory time off by filing a written request to their 
supervisor.  

• The supervisor may grant the request or may direct that the compensatory time off be 
taken at an agreed upon time. 
 

• At any time, the City of Stayton may elect to provide an employee with a cash payment 
for any or all accumulated compensatory time off.  



 
 

CITY OF STAYTON EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK       Page 10 of 48 

• At the time of an employee's resignation or termination, the City of Stayton will pay the 
employee for all accumulated overtime and compensatory time off.  

Employees who work overtime without authorization may be subject to discipline. Overtime pay 
is based on actual hours worked. Time off on sick, vacation, or any leave of absence will not be 
considered hours worked for purposes of performing overtime calculations. Certain 
administrative, professional, and executive personnel are exempt from the overtime provisions 
of the Fair Labor Standards Act. If you have any questions regarding your status, discuss this with 
your supervisor. 

G. Timekeeping Requirements 
Accurately recording time worked is the responsibility of every non-exempt employee. It is our 
intent to pay each employee, exempt or non-exempt, the proper and appropriate pay. 

We encourage every employee to immediately report any pay or benefit inaccuracies to your 
supervisor or Human Resources. We will not tolerate retaliation against those who report pay or 
benefit inaccuracies in good-faith.  

Non-exempt Employees  

Non-exempt (typically hourly) employees should accurately record the time they begin and end 
their work, as well as the beginning and ending time of each meal period. You should also record 
the beginning and ending time of any split shift or departure from work for personal reasons.  

Exempt Employees  

In general, salaries of exempt (typically salary) employees are not subject to reduction because of 
the number of hours worked in a day.  However, exempt employees must record any absences 
from work over 4 hours and may be required to use vacation, compensation, or sick leave for such 
absences. An exempt employee will usually receive his or her full salary (including any vacation or 
other accrued leave taken during that week) for any week in which they perform any work. There 
are certain exceptions to this rule. If you have a concern of an improper deduction, please contact 
your supervisor immediately. 

H. Travel/Expenses Reimbursements 
This subsection applies to volunteers and elected officials, as well as employees. 
 
All employees of the City of Stayton are expected to use good judgment regarding the expenditure 
of the funds for travel expenses. Only through good stewardship can the costs of travel on City 
business be minimized.  

The procedures for documenting the expenses involved with employee travel on City of Stayton 
related business activities are designed to provide accountability in two areas: 

 
• Pre-approval of all travel requests to ensure that the travel is appropriate to the needs of 

the City of Stayton and that budgeted funds are available for the specific travel request.  

• A complete accounting of the actual expenses for the travel to ensure that the expenses 
being reported for reimbursement are appropriate and to provide documentation of the 
expenditure of City of Stayton funds. 



 
 

CITY OF STAYTON EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK       Page 11 of 48 

When an employee anticipates submitting a request for travel reimbursement, the employee will 
obtain prior approval for the trip and the mode of travel from their supervisor.  

Travel on official business outside the City of Stayton by a single individual should be by City-
owned vehicle or, if preapproved, private vehicle. If the employee is authorized to use a private 
vehicle, mileage will be reimbursed at the applicable IRS rate at the time of travel.  

City of Stayton vehicles will be used for authorized City uses and will not be used for private gain 
or benefit. City of Stayton vehicles will not be used by family members of employees. 
Reimbursement for expenses on official trips will only be for expenses incurred during the 
performance of official duty as a City employee for the City's benefit. Meals and lodging expenses 
may be reimbursed up to the IRS reimbursement rates for meals and lodging in compliance with 
the Local Government employers’ taxable fringe benefit guide. Receipts are required for meal 
reimbursement. The City of Stayton will not reimburse employees for the cost of any alcoholic 
beverage.  

When the employee knows that expenses for an upcoming trip will exceed the IRS limits, the 
employee will request, and the department head may approve, the additional expenses. Within 
one week after the travel has been completed, the employee must turn in receipts for lodging 
and any other expenses which were paid on an actual basis. 

I. Payroll Policies 
All employees are paid monthly on the last day of the month unless the payday falls on a Saturday 
or Sunday, in which case employees are paid on the previous Friday. 

Our workweek is from Monday from 12:00 a.m. to Sunday at 11:59 p.m. Each paycheck will 
include earnings for all work performed through the end of the previous payroll period. The pay 
period will begin on the 26th of the month and end on the 25th of the following month.  

In the event that a regularly scheduled payday falls on a day off such as a weekend or holiday, you 
will receive pay on the last day of work before the regularly scheduled payday.  

The City of Stayton will issue your paycheck each pay period. The City highly encourages 
employees to take advantage of being paid electronically via direct deposit. Having direct deposit 
means your money will be in your bank account on payday (times may vary depending upon 
banking systems). If you choose not to have direct deposit, a paper check will be issued. 

J. Reporting Changes to an Employee’s Personal Data 
Because personnel records are used to administer pay and benefits, and other employment 
decisions, employees are responsible for keeping information current regarding changes in name, 
address, phone number, exemptions, dependents, beneficiary, etc. Keeping your personnel 
records current can be important to you with regard to pay, deductions, benefits and other 
matters. If you have changes in any of the following items, you must notify Payroll to ensure that 
the proper updates/paperwork are completed as quickly as possible: 

• Name; 
• Marital status/Domestic Partnership (for purposes of benefit eligibility determination 

only); 
• Address or telephone number;   
• Dependents; 
• Person to be notified in case of emergency; 



 
 

CITY OF STAYTON EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK       Page 12 of 48 

• Other information having a bearing on your employment; and 
• Tax withholding. 

Employees may not intentionally withhold information from the City of Stayton about the items 
listed above in order to continue to receive benefits or anything of value for themselves or anyone 
else. Upon request, the City of Stayton may require employees to provide proof of marital 
status/domestic partnership status. Employees who violate this policy may be subject to 
discipline, up to and including termination. 

K. Performance Reviews and Step Increases 
All City of Stayton employees will receive yearly performance reviews. Performance reviews serve 
as one factor in decisions related to employment, such as training, merit pay increases, job 
assignments, employee development, promotions, retention and discipline/termination. Any 
employee who fails to satisfactorily perform the duties of his/her position may be subject to 
corrective counseling or disciplinary action (including termination). 

The City of Stayton’s goal is to provide an employee with his/her first formal performance 
evaluation at the conclusion of the employee’s introductory period. After the initial evaluation, 
the City of Stayton will provide a formal performance review on an annual basis.   

Reviews will generally include the following:  

• An evaluation of the employee’s quality and quantity of work  
• A review of exceptional employee accomplishments  
• Establishment of goals for career development and job enrichment  
• A review of areas needing improvement  
• Setting of performance goals for the employee for the following year. 

Employees who disagree with a performance evaluation may submit a written response with 
reasons for disagreement. The employee’s response shall be filed with the employee’s 
performance evaluation in the employee’s personnel file. Such response must be filed not later 
than 30 days following the date the performance evaluation was received. 

Supervisors are encouraged to provide employees with informal evaluations of their employees’ 
work on an as-needed basis.   

Upon the City’s determination that an employee has successfully completed his/her probationary 
period, the employee may be granted an annual step increase on their first anniversary date 
(measured as one full year of service following date of hire).  

Permanent employees, except those who have reached the top salary step for their classification, 
may be granted an annual step increase on subsequent anniversary dates (measured at each 
subsequent full year of service following employee’s hire date or date of subsequent promotion, 
i.e., a promotion will result in a new anniversary date).  Generally, employees must receive a 
performance rating of at least satisfactory, as reflected in a performance appraisal completed by 
the employee’s supervisor, in order to be eligible for consideration of an annual step increase.     

Employees who have reached the top salary step for their classification shall continue to be 
subject to annual performance appraisals as a measure of the employee’s ongoing performance 
and as an opportunity to refresh the employee’s and supervisor’s mutual understanding of the 
supervisor’s performance expectations. Upon a satisfactory evaluation, an employee at the top 
salary step for their classification may be eligible for an annual percentage bonus. 



 
 

CITY OF STAYTON EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK       Page 13 of 48 

An employee not meeting expectations following their annual review will not be eligible for the 
bonus. 

All salary step increases are discretionary, are subject to availability of funds, and must be 
recommended by the employee’s supervisor and/or Department Head and approved by the City 
Manager. Annual evaluations shall be done on a timely basis. When an evaluation is not 
accomplished by an employee’s anniversary date, any step increase granted to the employee shall 
be retroactive to the employee’s anniversary date.  Whenever possible, an employee shall be 
made aware of performance deficiencies upon which a merit increase may be denied and, 
whenever possible, given an opportunity to correct the deficiency prior to the annual review.  

Each employee shall be paid at the regular rate of pay for their job grade for all work done, except 
as follows: 

1. Any employee working out of class at a higher grade job than the employee's regular 
rating shall be paid a premium of 10% of their regular rate of pay, beginning with the first 
day of their working out of class. 

 
  



 
 

CITY OF STAYTON EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK       Page 14 of 48 

III. Time Off and Leaves of Absence 
 

This Section does not apply to elected officials or volunteers. 

A. Attendance and Punctuality 
In the rare instances when you cannot avoid being late to work or are unable to work as 
scheduled, you must notify your supervisor as soon as possible in advance of the anticipated 
tardiness or absence. Your supervisor must also be contacted on each additional day of absence.  

If you are absent for more than three consecutive days due to illness or injury, the City may require 
you to provide a physician's statement for the absence and its beginning and expected ending 
dates (however particular details about your health or condition are not required). Such 
verification may be requested for other paid and unpaid leaves that are used for illnesses and 
injury and may be required as a condition to receiving paid leave benefits. 

B. Vacation 
It is the policy of the City of Stayton to provide each full-time regular employee with vacation time 
on a periodic basis. The amount of vacation to which an employee becomes entitled is determined 
by the employee’s length of service as of his or her employment anniversary date. For regular, 
full-time employees not subject to a collective bargaining agreement, vacation accrues monthly 
as follows: 

0 through completion of 3 years Eighty (80) hours annually 

3 years plus 1 day through completion of 5 years Ninety-Six (96) hours annually 

5 years plus 1 day through completion of 10 years One-hundred twenty (120) hours annually 

10 years plus 1 day through completion of 15 years One-hundred sixty (160) hours annually 

15 plus one day or more years Two hundred (200) hours annually 

• Years of service shall be full years of continuous service with the City of Stayton as of the 
original date of hire of the employee, provided there has been no break in service since 
the original date of hire.  

• Regular part-time employees shall be entitled to that fractional part of the vacation that 
the total number of hours of employment bears to the total number of full-time 
employment hours.  

• Employees may not use earned vacation leave until after they have served the three (3) 
months, unless preapproved by your supervisor.  

• Temporary employees are not entitled to any vacation benefit.  

Vacation leave is granted to give employees an opportunity to take time off from their job 
responsibilities and refresh themselves. The City of Stayton believes it is important for employees 
to use vacation leave on a regular basis. 



 
 

CITY OF STAYTON EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK       Page 15 of 48 

All employees are encouraged to take a minimum of forty (40) hours of vacation leave annually.  

Employees with access to cash and/or the authority to transfer or expend funds must take a 
minimum of five (5) consecutive work days off annually.  

If an employee does not use up all accumulated vacation leave by the first day of January of any 
calendar year, the employee may carry over vacation leave up to the maximum number of hours 
listed: 

Upon completion of 0 to 5 years of service 120 hours 

Upon completion of 5 years plus one day to 10 years of service 160 hours 

Upon completion of 10 years plus one day to 15 years of service 200 hours 

Upon beginning of 15 years plus one day or more of service 240 hours 

 
In the event an employee anticipates their earned vacation will exceed the maximum hours 
allowed for carry over to the next year, the employee may file a written request with their 
supervisor prior to the first day of January, that the City of Stayton convert forty-hour blocks of 
vacation time into pay or to allow for up to forty (40) additional hours of vacation to be carried 
over for up to one (1) additional year. Approval or denial of the request is at the discretion of the 
City of Stayton. The conversion of earned vacation to pay or the carryover of forty (40) hours of 
vacation for up to one (1) additional year may be approved only by the City Manager and only if 
the following conditions exist:  

• The supervisor has recommended approval of the request so that work priorities can be 
accomplished;  

• The City of Stayton will benefit more from the employee’s continued work than by them 
taking earned vacation time or a clearly justifiable cause;  

• The employee has taken a minimum of forty (40) hours of vacation during the preceding 
twelve months.  

All vacations must be scheduled and approved by the supervisor in advance with due 
consideration being given to the desires of the employees and to the work requirements facing 
the department. Vacation schedules may be amended to allow the department to meet 
emergency situations.  

Employees will not accrue vacation time while on any leave of absence, unless required by law. 

C. Sick Leave 
The City of Stayton provides eligible employees with sick leave in accordance with Oregon’s Paid 
Sick Leave Law. This policy will be updated as necessary to reflect changes in and to ensure 
compliance with Oregon law. 

Employees with questions about this policy may contact the HR representative. Please also refer 
to the Oregon Sick Leave Law poster that is posted in the breakroom(s) and is incorporated here 
by reference. 



 
 

CITY OF STAYTON EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK       Page 16 of 48 

Eligibility and Accrual of Paid Sick Leave 

Under Oregon’s Paid Sick Leave Law and this policy, “employee” includes part-time, full-time, 
hourly, salaried, exempt and non-exempt employees. Sick leave runs concurrently with Oregon 
Family Medical Leave, federal Family and Medical Leave and other leave where allowed by law. 

Employees begin to accrue paid sick leave on the first day of employment and.  Sick leave accrues 
monthly on the first day of the month. 

Paid sick leave shall accrue for full-time employees at the rate eight (8) hours per month, with an 
accrual cap of 600 hours. Employees working less than 30 hours a week will accrue four (4) hours 
per month with an accrual cap of 300 hours. Paid sick leave shall be taken in hourly increments. 

Pay Rate and Carryover 

Paid sick leave will be paid at the employee’s regular rate of pay. Exempt employees are presumed 
to work 40 hours in each workweek for purposes of their sick leave accrual unless their normal 
workweek is less than 40 hours, in which case sick leave is accrued based on the employee’s 
normal workweek. Generally, sick leave pay will be included in the paycheck for the next payroll 
period after sick leave is used, provided the employee submits adequate documentation verifying 
that the absence was for a qualifying reason as defined in the “Use of Sick Leave” section below. 

Sick leave is meant to be used or carried over; any unused sick leave will not be cashed out upon 
separation from employment. If an employee leaves employment and is rehired within 180 days, 
the employee’s sick leave balance will be restored. 

Use of Sick Leave   

Accrued paid sick leave may be used for the following reasons:  

1. For the diagnosis, care or treatment of a mental or physical illness, injury or health 
condition or need for preventive medical care. This is available for the employee or 
his/her covered family member. 

• “Family member” means the eligible employee’s grandparent, grandchild, spouse, or 
registered same-gender domestic partner, and the domestic partner’s child or parent; 
the employee’s stepchild, parent-in-law or a person with whom the employee was or 
is in a relationship of in loco parentis; and the employee’s biological, adoptive or 
foster parent or child. 

2. For any purpose allowed under the Oregon Family Leave Act.  

3. If the employee, or the employee’s minor child or dependent, is a victim of domestic 
violence, harassment, sexual assault or stalking as defined by Oregon law and requires 
leave for any of the purposes under Oregon’s domestic violence leave law (ORS 
659A.272).  

4. In the event of certain public health emergencies or other reasons specified under 
Oregon’s sick leave law.  

Employees absent from work for a qualifying reason must use accrued sick time hours for that 
reason and on each subsequent day of absence. However, if the employee’s paid sick leave 
accruals are expended, a supervisor may approve the use of vacation time for such purposes. 



 
 

CITY OF STAYTON EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK       Page 17 of 48 

Employee Notice of Need for Sick Leave 

Foreseeable Sick Leave: If the need for sick leave is foreseeable, an employee must notify their 
supervisor as soon as practicable before the leave using the City of Stayton’s call-in/notification 
procedures. Employees must make a reasonable effort to schedule foreseeable sick time in a 
manner that minimally disrupts the operations of City of Stayton. Employees must notify their 
supervisor of any change in the expected duration of sick leave as soon as is practicable. 

Unforeseeable Sick Leave: If the need for sick leave is unforeseeable, the employee must notify 
their supervisor as soon as practicable and comply generally with City of Stayton’s call-in 
procedures. Generally, an employee should notify their immediate supervisor of unforeseeable 
sick leave at least 30 minutes prior to the beginning of his/her shift, unless physically unable to 
do so, at which time notice should be given as soon as possible. Notification can be made via 
phone, voicemail, text, or email. 

An employee must contact their supervisor daily while on sick leave, unless an extended period 
of sick leave has been prearranged with the supervisor or when off work on protected leave. The 
employee shall inform their supervisor of any change in the duration of sick leave as soon as 
practicable. 

If an employee fails to provide proper notice or make a reasonable effort to schedule leave in a 
manner that is only minimally disruptive to the organization and operations, the City of Stayton 
may deny the use and legal protections of sick leave. 

Sick Leave Documentation 

If an employee takes more than three consecutive scheduled workdays as sick leave, the City of 
Stayton may require reasonable documentation showing that the employee was absent for an 
approved reason. Reasonable documentation includes documentation signed by a healthcare 
provider, or documentation for victims of domestic violence, harassment, sexual assault or 
stalking.  

Sick Leave Abuse 

If the City of Stayton suspects sick leave abuse, including but not limited to: repeated use of 
unscheduled sick leave or repeated use of sick leave adjacent to weekends, holidays, vacations 
and paydays, the City of Stayton may require documentation from a healthcare provider. 
Employees found to have abused sick leave as described here may also be subject to discipline, 
up to and including termination. 

D. Holidays and Floating Holidays 
City of Stayton recognizes eleven (11) holidays each year. All full-time employees will receive their 
regular straight-time compensation for each holiday. Regular part-time employees receive pro-
rata pay for each designated holiday in the proportion that their normally scheduled number of 
hours relates to 40 hours per week. The holidays celebrated are: 

• New Year's Day (January 1)  
• Martin Luther King Jr. Day (third Monday in January)  
• Presidents Day (third Monday in February)  
• Memorial Day (last Monday in May)  
• Independence Day (July 4)  
• Labor Day (first Monday in September)  



 
 

CITY OF STAYTON EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK       Page 18 of 48 

• Veterans Day (November 11)  
• Thanksgiving Day (fourth Thursday in November)  
• Day after Thanksgiving Day (fourth Friday in November)  
• Christmas Eve Day – ½ day ( December 24) 
• Christmas Day (December 25)  

A holiday that falls on a weekend will be observed on either the preceding Friday or the following 
Monday to coincide with local custom. 

Any hourly, non-exempt employee required to work on a holiday shall be paid at one and one-
half (1.5) times the employee’s regular rate of pay.  

The holiday benefit shall be based upon an eight (8) hour holiday/work day for full-time 
employees regardless of the hours of the regular work schedule.  Regular part-time employees 
will be paid pro-rata holiday pay only for holidays that fall on the employee’s regularly-scheduled 
work days. They will not receive holiday pay for holidays that do not fall on one of their regularly-
scheduled work days.  Temporary employees are not eligible for holiday pay.  

An employee will receive no holiday pay if the employee scheduled work on a holiday and failed 
to report for work.  

E. Family Medical Leave  
FMLA/OFLA Policy  

The following is a summary of Family and Medical Leave policy and procedures under the federal 
Family Medical Leave Act (FMLA) and the Oregon Family Leave Act (OFLA).  The City complies with 
both FMLA and OFLA, which are subject to change.  City will provide the FMLA/OFLA protections 
and benefits as they may be amended from time to time.  Generally, eligible employees are 
entitled to 12 weeks of unpaid leave of absence for the reasons identified below. Federal and 
state law prohibit retaliation against an employee because the employee asked about, requested 
or used Family and Medical Leave. In all cases, applicable Oregon and federal laws, rules govern 
the employee’s and the City of Stayton’s rights and obligations regarding family leave. 

Employees seeking further information should contact the HR representative. Please also refer to 
the “Employee Rights and Responsibilities Under the Family Medical Leave Act” and “Oregon 
Family Leave Act” notices posted in the breakroom(s). 

• Definitions 

o Child/Son or Daughter: For purposes of OFLA, “child” includes a biological, adopted, 
foster or stepchild, the child of a registered same-sex domestic partner or a child with 
whom the employee is in a relationship of in loco parentis. For purposes of OFLA 
Serious Health Condition Leave, the “child” can be any age; for all other types of leave 
under OFLA, the “child” must be under the age of 18 or over 18 if incapable of self-
care. 

A “son or daughter” is defined by FMLA as a biological, adopted, or foster child, a 
stepchild, a legal ward, or a child of a person standing in loco parentis who is either 
under 18 years of age or is 18 years of age or older and “incapable of self-care because 
of a mental or physical disability” at the time FMLA leave is to commence. FMLA also 
provides separate definitions of “son or daughter” for FMLA military family leave that 
are not restricted by age — see below. 



 
 

CITY OF STAYTON EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK       Page 19 of 48 

o Eligible Employee: 

OFLA – To qualify for OFLA leave for a Serious Health Condition or Sick Child Leave, 
an employee must have been employed for at least 180 days and worked an average 
of at least 25 hours per week. To qualify for Parental Leave under OFLA, an employee 
must have been employed for at least 180 days (no per-week hourly minimum is 
required).  

OMFLA — For purposes of Oregon Military Family Leave Act leave, the employee 
need have only worked 20 hours per week (no minimum length of employment 
required). A different calculation method applies for reemployed service members 
under USERRA who seek OMFLA leave; see Human Resources for more information. 

FMLA — Employees are eligible for FMLA leave if they have worked for the City for at 
least one year (which may be based on separate stints of employment) and for at 
least 1,250 hours during the 12 months preceding the date leave is to begin.  

Leave under Oregon and federal law will run concurrently when permitted.  Sick leave 
will also run concurrently with any approved FMLA or OFLA leave. 

o Family Medical Leave: This includes all of the types of leave identified in the section 
below, entitled “Reasons for Taking Leave,” unless otherwise specified. 

o Family Member: For purposes of FMLA, “family member” is defined as a spouse, 
parent or a “son” or “daughter” (defined above). For purposes of OFLA, “family 
member” includes the definitions found under FMLA and also includes adult children 
(for “serious health condition” leave only), a parent-in-law, grandparent, grandchild, 
registered same-sex domestic partner, and parent or child of a registered same-sex 
domestic partner. 

o Serious Health Condition: “Serious health condition” is defined under FMLA and OFLA 
as an illness, injury, impairment, or physical or mental condition that involves either 
an overnight stay in a medical care facility, or continuing treatment by a health care 
provider for a condition that either prevents the employee from performing the 
functions of the employee’s job, or prevents the qualified family member from 
participating in school or other daily activities. 

Subject to certain conditions, the “continuing treatment requirement” may be met by 
a period of incapacity of more than three consecutive calendar days combined with at 
least two visits to a health care provider or one visit and a regimen of continuing 
treatment, or incapacity due to pregnancy, or incapacity due to a chronic condition.  

Other conditions may meet the definition of a “serious health condition”; see Human 
Resources for more information. The common cold, flu, earaches, upset stomach, 
minor ulcers, headaches other than migraine, routine dental or orthodontia problems, 
periodontal disease, and cosmetic treatments (without complications), are examples 
of conditions that are not generally defined as serious health conditions, and do not 
qualify for OFLA or FMLA leave.  However, they may qualify for sick leave. 

• Reasons for Taking Leave 

Subject to federal and state law, and these policies, Family Medical Leave may be taken 
under any of the following circumstances: 



 
 

CITY OF STAYTON EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK       Page 20 of 48 

o Call to Active Duty Leave: Eligible employees with a spouse, son, daughter, or parent 
on active duty or call to active duty status in the regular Armed Forces, National Guard 
or Reserves in support of a contingency operation may use their 12-week leave 
entitlement to address certain “qualifying exigencies.” “Qualifying exigencies” may 
include attending certain military events, arranging for alternative childcare, 
addressing certain financial and legal arrangements, attending certain counseling 
sessions, and attending post-deployment reintegration briefings. This type of leave is 
available under FMLA only; however, under OFLA, specifically under the Oregon 
Military Family Leave Act, during a period of military conflict, as defined by the 
statute, eligible employees with a spouse or registered same-sex domestic partner 
who is a member of the Armed Forces, National Guard, or military reserve forces of 
the U.S. and who has been notified of an impending call or order to active duty, or 
who has been deployed, is generally entitled to a total of 14 days of unpaid leave per 
deployment after the military spouse or registered same-sex domestic partner has 
been notified of an impending call or order to active duty and before deployment and 
when the military person is on leave from deployment.  Check with HR if this type of 
leave may apply to you. 

o Employee’s Serious Health Condition Leave: To recover from or seek treatment for an 
employee’s serious health condition, including pregnancy-related conditions and 
prenatal care. 

o Family Member’s Serious Health Condition Leave: To care for a family member with 
a serious health condition. 

o Parental Leave: For the birth of a child or for the placement of a child under 18 years 
of age for adoption or foster care. Parental leave must be completed within 12 
months of the birth of a newborn or placement of an adopted or foster child. 

o Pregnancy Disability Leave: For incapacity due to pregnancy, prenatal medical care or 
birth. 

o Service Member Family Leave: Subject to federal law and Oregon law, eligible 
employees may take up to 26 weeks of leave to care for a “covered service member” 
during a single 12-month period. A “covered service member” is a current member of 
the Armed Forces, including a member of the National Guard or Reserves, who has a 
serious injury or illness incurred in the line of duty on active duty that may render the 
service member medically unfit to perform his or her duties for which the service 
member is undergoing medical treatment, recuperation, or therapy; or is in 
outpatient status; or is on the temporary disability retired list. Under some 
circumstances, a veteran will be considered a “covered service member.” This type of 
leave is available under FMLA only. 

o Sick Child Leave: To care for a child who suffers from an illness or injury that does not 
qualify as a serious health condition but that requires home care. This type of leave 
does not provide for routine medical and dental appointments or issues surrounding 
the availability of childcare when the child is not ill or injured. Sick child leave is not 
available if another family member is able and willing to care for the child. This type 
of leave is available only to employees who are eligible under OFLA. 

o Bereavement Leave: This type of leave is addressed under OFLA; see the 
Bereavement Leave Policy (Section G) for more information. 



 
 

CITY OF STAYTON EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK       Page 21 of 48 

• Length of Leave 

Subject to federal and state law, in any One-Year Calculation Period, eligible employees 
may take: 

o Up to twelve (12) weeks of Parental Leave, Serious Health Condition Leave 
(employee’s own or family member), Sick Child Leave, or Call to Active Duty Leave; 

o In some cases, an additional twelve (12) weeks of leave may be available to an eligible 
employee for an illness, injury or condition related to pregnancy or childbirth that 
disables the employee; and 

o In some cases, employees who take the entire twelve (12) weeks of OFLA Parental 
Leave will be entitled to an additional twelve (12) weeks of Sick Child Leave. 

When leave is taken for Service Member Family Leave, an eligible employee may take 
up to 26 weeks of leave during the One-Year Calculation Period to care for the service 
member. During the One-Year Calculation Period in which Service Member Family 
Leave is taken, an eligible employee is entitled to a combined total of 26 weeks of 
FMLA Leave (some of which may include other types of FMLA-specific leaves of 
absence).  

• One-Year Calculation Period 

The “12-month period” during which leave is available (also referred to as the “One-Year 
Calculation Period”) will be determined by using a 12-month “rolling” year dating from 
the day the employee first uses his or her protected leave. Each time an employee takes 
Family Medical Leave, the remaining leave entitlement would be any balance of the 12 
weeks which has not been used during that employee’s “rolling” year. 

• Intermittent Leave 

Subject to federal and state law, in some limited circumstances, intermittent or reduced 
schedule leave may be taken during a period of Family Member or Employee Serious 
Health Condition Leave or Service Member Family Leave. Additionally, Call to Active Duty 
Leave may be taken on an intermittent or reduced leave schedule basis. An employee 
may be temporarily reassigned to a position that better accommodates an intermittent 
or reduced schedule; employees covered by OFLA will not be reassigned without their 
express consent and agreement. Employees must make reasonable efforts to schedule 
planned medical treatments so as to minimize disruption of City of Stayton’s operations, 
including consulting management prior to the scheduling of treatment in order to work 
out a treatment schedule which best suits the needs of both City of Stayton and the 
employee. Intermittent leave for Parental Leave is not available. 

• Employee Responsibilities — Notice 

Employees must provide at least 30 days’ notice before Family Medical Leave is to begin 
if the reason for leave is foreseeable based on an expected birth, placement for adoption 
or foster care, planned medical treatment for a serious health condition of the employee 
or of a family member, or the planned treatment for a serious injury or illness of a covered 
service member (Service Member Family Leave). If 30 days’ notice is not practicable, such 
as because of a lack of knowledge of approximately when leave will be required to begin, 
a change in circumstances, or a medical emergency, notice must be given as soon as 
practicable. If the situation giving rise to a Sick Child Leave is unforeseeable, an employee 



 
 

CITY OF STAYTON EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK       Page 22 of 48 

must give verbal or written notice to the City of Stayton within 24 hours of 
commencement of the leave, or as soon as practicable. 

For Call to Active Duty Leave, notice must be provided as soon as practicable, regardless 
of how far in advance such leave is foreseeable. 

Whether leave is to be continuous or is to be taken intermittently or on a reduced 
schedule basis, notice need only be given one time, but the employee must let their 
supervisor know as soon as practicable if dates of scheduled leave change or are extended 
or were initially unknown. 

If circumstances change during the leave and the leave period differs from the original 
request, the employee must notify their, as soon as possible. 

Regardless of the reason for leave, or whether the need for leave is foreseeable, 
employees will be expected to comply with the City of Stayton’s normal call-in 
procedures. Employees who fail to comply with the City of Stayton’s leave procedures 
may be denied leave, subject to discipline, or the start date of the employee’s Family 
Medical Leave may be delayed. 

• Certification 

Generally speaking, employees must provide sufficient information for the City of Stayton 
to determine if the leave may qualify for FMLA or OFLA protection and the anticipated 
timing and duration of the leave. Sufficient information may include that the employee is 
unable to perform job functions, the family member is unable to perform daily activities, 
the need for hospitalization or continuing treatment by a health care provider, or 
circumstances supporting the need for either Call to Active Duty or Service Member 
Family Leave.  Specific health details are not required. 

Employees also must inform the employer if the requested leave is for a reason for which 
FMLA leave was previously taken or certified. Additionally: 

o Employees requesting serious health condition leave for themselves or to care for a 
covered family member will be required to provide certification from the health care 
provider of the employee or the covered family member to support the request.  If 
the certification does not provide adequate information, the employee will be 
required to submit another certification.  Further, the City may ask employee to 
submit a record certification with a physician of the City’s choice. 

o Employees requesting sick child leave under OFLA may be required to submit, at a 
minimum, a note from a doctor if the employee has requested to use more than three 
days (i.e., one three-day occurrence or three separate instances) of sick child leave 
within a one-year period. 

Employees must furnish City of Stayton’s requested medical certification information 
within 15 calendar days after such information is requested by the City of Stayton. In some 
cases (except for leave to care for a sick child), the City of Stayton may require a second 
or third opinion, at the City of Stayton’s expense. Employees also may be required to 
submit subsequent medical verification. 

Employees will not be asked for, and they should not provide, any genetic information 
about themselves or a family member in connection with a FMLA/OFLA medical 
certification. 



 
 

CITY OF STAYTON EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK       Page 23 of 48 

• Medical Certification for Leave 

If Family Medical Leave is for the employee’s own serious health condition, the City may 
require the employee to furnish, prior to returning to work, a medical certification (or a 
more detailed fitness-for-duty certification for physically strenuous positions) from their 
health care provider stating that the employee is able to resume work. 

• Substitution of Paid Leave for Unpaid Leave  

Employees are required to use accrued paid leave, including floating holidays, vacation, 
compensatory time, and sick leave prior to a period of unpaid leave of absence on Family 
Medical Leave. Use of accrued paid leaves will run concurrently with Family Medical 
Leave.  The order in which the accrued paid leave shall be deducted is as follows:  sick, 
compensatory, vacation, donated sick. 

• Holiday Pay While on Leave 

Employees receiving short- or long-term disability will not qualify for holiday pay. 
Employees using vacation pay or sick pay during a portion of approved Family Medical 
Leave in which a holiday occurs will qualify to receive holiday pay. Employees who are on 
unpaid leave during a holiday will not qualify to receive holiday pay. 

• On-the-Job Injury or Illness 

Periods of employee disability resulting from a compensable on-the-job injury or illness 
will qualify for FMLA Leave if the injury or illness is a “serious health condition” as defined 
by applicable law. 

OFLA leave will not be reduced by and will not run concurrently with any period the 
employee is unable to work because of a disabling compensable on-the-job injury, for 
which the employee receives Worker’s Compensation benefits; however, if the injury or 
illness is a “serious health condition” as defined by Oregon law and the employee has 
refused a bona fide offer of light-duty or modified employment, OFLA leave will 
commence. 

If the employee’s serious health condition is the result of an on-the-job injury or illness, 
the employee may qualify for workers’ compensation time-loss benefits. 

• Benefits While on Leave 

If an employee is on approved FMLA or OFLA Leave, the City of Stayton will continue the 
employee’s health coverage under any “group health plan” on the same terms as if the 
employee had continued to work. An employee wishing to maintain health insurance 
during a period of approved FMLA or OFLA leave will be responsible for bearing the cost 
of his/her share of group health plan premiums which had been paid by the employee 
prior to the OFLA/FMLA leave. Employees will not accrue vacation, sick leave or other 
benefits (other than health insurance) while the employee is on an unpaid FMLA or OFLA 
leave. The leave period, however, will be treated as continuous service (i.e., no break in 
service) for purposes of vesting and eligibility to participate in City of Stayton benefit 
plans. 

• Job Protection 

Employees returning to work from Family Medical Leave will generally be reinstated to 
their former position. If the position has been eliminated or significantly altered, the 



 
 

CITY OF STAYTON EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK       Page 24 of 48 

employee may be reassigned to an available equivalent position. Reinstatement is not 
guaranteed if the position has been eliminated under circumstances where the law does 
not require reinstatement. 

Employees are expected to promptly return to work when the circumstances requiring 
Family Medical Leave have been resolved, even if leave was originally approved for a 
longer period. If an employee does not return to work at the end of a designated Family 
Medical Leave period, reinstatement may not be available unless the law requires 
otherwise.   

The use of Family Medical Leave cannot result in the loss of any employment benefit that 
accrued prior to the start of an employee’s leave. 

Employees who work for other employers during a leave may be subject to discipline, up 
to, and including termination. Additionally, all employees who use Family Medical Leave 
for reasons other than the reason for which leave had been granted may be subject to 
discipline up to and including termination. 

F. Personal Leave 
We recognize that there will be times when an employee needs extended time off due to personal 
matters. All employees in good standing who have completed at least one (1) year of service are 
eligible to request an unpaid personal leave as described in this policy.  The City may grant or deny 
this request at its discretion. 

As soon as you become aware of the need for a personal leave of absence, you should request a 
leave from your supervisor. Requests for personal leave and extensions of granted leaves must 
be in writing and must be approved in writing by the employee's supervisor and the City Manager.  

Personal leave may be granted for a period of up to 90 calendar days every one year. With a 
supervisor’s approval, you may take any available sick leave or vacation as part of the approved 
period of leave.  Your supervisor may require you to use any accumulated paid leave (sick, comp 
time, vacation) prior to granting such approval. 

Requests for personal leave will be evaluated based on a number of factors, including anticipated 
work load requirements and staffing considerations during the proposed period of absence.  

Subject to the terms, conditions and limitations of the applicable plans, health insurance benefits 
will be provided by the City of Stayton until the end of the month in which the approved personal 
leave goes into unpaid status. At that time, you will become responsible for the full costs of these 
benefits if you wish coverage to continue. When you return from personal leave, benefits will 
again be provided by the City of Stayton according to the applicable plans.  

Benefit accruals, such as vacation, sick or holiday benefits, will be suspended during the leave and 
will resume upon return to active employment.  

When a personal leave ends, every reasonable effort will be made to return you to the same 
position, if it is available, or to a similar available position for which you are qualified. However, 
we cannot guarantee reinstatement in all cases.  

G. Bereavement Leave  
Employees who have worked for the City of Stayton for 180 calendar days, and averaged at least 
25 hours per week, may take up to two weeks of unpaid bereavement leave per death of a Family 



 
 

CITY OF STAYTON EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK       Page 25 of 48 

Member (defined below). Employees who have worked for the City of Stayton for 90-180 days 
may use up to 40 hours of accrued sick leave for bereavement purposes, and who have 
experienced the death of a Family Member (defined below). Employees who have worked for the 
City of Stayton for fewer than 90 days may not be eligible for leave; see the HR representative for 
more information. 

Bereavement leave may be used to attend the funeral or alternative to a funeral of the family 
member, to make arrangements necessitated by the death of the family member, or to grieve the 
death of the family member. The two weeks of bereavement leave must be taken in the 60-day 
period following notice of death of a family member and will be deducted from the employee’s 
available leave time under OFLA. For purposes of this policy, “Family Member” is defined to 
include the employee’s spouse, same-sex domestic partner (registered), child, parent, parent-in-
law, grandparent, or grandchild, or the same relations of an employee's same-sex domestic 
partner (registered) or spouse. 

Employees who wish to take bereavement leave must inform the City of Stayton as soon as 
possible after receiving notification of a Family Member’s death. Although prior notice is not 
required, oral notice must be provided within 24 hours of beginning leave. Documented proof of 
the need for the bereavement leave may be required by your supervisor within three days of 
returning to work.  Employees are required to use any available sick leave during the period of 
bereavement leave; vacation time will be used if the employee has no available sick leave. 

H. Jury and Witness Duty 
The City of Stayton will grant employees time off for mandatory jury duty and may grant time off 
if they are subpoenaed as a witness. The employee will provide a copy of the summons to their 
supervisor at least two (2) weeks prior to the required appearance to verify the need for such 
leave. When an employee is called for jury duty or serving as a witness, they will be granted a 
reasonable time-off duty to serve as a juror or witness without loss of pay, earned vacation, or 
sick leave. Employees serving as jurors or as a witness will transfer any payment received for the 
performance of this duty, except mileage, to the City of Stayton.   

The employee is expected to report for work when doing so does not conflict with court 
obligations. It is the employee’s responsibility to keep his or her supervisor informed about the 
amount of time required for jury duty. 

Except for employee absences covered under City of Stayton’s “Crime Victim Leave Policy” or 
“Domestic Violence Leave and Accommodation Policy,” employees who are subpoenaed to testify 
in non-work-related legal proceedings must use any available vacation or compensation time to 
cover their absence from work. If the employee does not have any available vacation time, the 
employee may request personal leave pursuant to this policy handbook.  Employees must present 
a copy of the subpoena served on them to their supervisor for scheduling and verification 
purposes no later than 24 hours after being served. 

I. Religious Observances Leave and Accommodation Policy 
The City of Stayton respects the religious beliefs and practices of all employees. The City of Stayton 
will make, upon request, an accommodation for such observances when a reasonable 
accommodation is available that does not create an undue hardship on the City of Stayton’s 
business. Employees may use vacation, compensation or unpaid time for religious holy days or to 
participate in a religious observance or practice; if accrued leave is not available, then an 



 
 

CITY OF STAYTON EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK       Page 26 of 48 

employee may request to take unpaid leave. Requests for religious leave or accommodation 
should be made with the supervisor. 

J. Crime Victim Leave Policy 
Any employee who has worked an average of at least 25 hours per week for 180 days is eligible 
for reasonable, unpaid leave to attend criminal proceedings if the employee or his or her 
immediate family member (defined below) has suffered financial, social, psychological or physical 
harm as a result of being a victim of certain felonies, such as kidnapping, rape, arson, and assault.  

“Immediate family member” includes a spouse, registered same-sex domestic partner, father, 
mother, sibling, child, stepchild or grandparent. 

Employees who are eligible for crime victim leave must: 

• Use any accrued, but unused vacation/sick leave during the leave period; 

• Provide as much advance notice as is practicable of his/her intention to take leave (unless 
giving advance notice is not feasible); and 

• Submit a request for the leave in writing to their supervisor as far in advance as possible, 
indicating the amount of time needed, when the time will be needed, and the reason for 
the leave. 

In all circumstances, the City of Stayton may require certification of the need for leave, such as 
copies of any notices of scheduled criminal proceedings that the employee receives from a law 
enforcement agency or district attorney’s office, police report, a protective order issued by a 
court, or similarly reliable sources. 

K. Domestic Violence Leave and Accommodation Policy  
Subject to state law, all employees are eligible for reasonable unpaid leave to address domestic 
violence, harassment, sexual assault, or stalking of the employee or his or her minor dependents. 

Reasons for taking leave include the employee’s (or the employee’s dependent’s) need to seek 
legal or law enforcement assistance or remedies; secure medical treatment for or time off to 
recover from injuries; seek counseling from a licensed mental health professional; obtain services 
from a victim services provider; or relocate or secure an existing home.  

Leave is generally unpaid, but the employee may use any accrued vacation, compensation or sick 
leave while on this type of leave. 

When seeking this type of leave, the employee should provide as much advance notice as is 
practicable of their intent to take leave, unless giving advance notice is not feasible. 

Notice of need to take leave should be provided by submitting a request for leave in writing to 
your supervisor as far in advance as possible, indicating the time needed, when the time will be 
needed, and the reason for the leave. The City of Stayton will then generally require certification 
of the need for the leave, such as a police report, protective order or other evidence of a court 
proceeding, or documentation from a law enforcement officer, attorney, healthcare professional, 
member of the clergy, or victim services provider. 

If more leave than originally authorized needs to be taken, the employee should give the City of 
Stayton notice as soon as is practicable prior to the end of the authorized leave. When taking 
leave in an unanticipated or emergency situation, the employee must give oral or written notice 



 
 

CITY OF STAYTON EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK       Page 27 of 48 

as soon as is practicable. When leave is unanticipated, this notice may be given by any person on 
the employee’s behalf. 

Finally, employees who are victims of domestic violence, harassment, sexual assault or stalking 
may be entitled to a “reasonable safety accommodation” that will allow the employee to more 
safely continue to work, unless such an accommodation would impose an “undue hardship” on 
City of Stayton. Please contact your supervisor immediately with requests for reasonable safety 
accommodations. 

L. Military Leave 
Employees who wish to serve in the military and take military leave should contact their 
supervisor for information about their rights before and after such leave. You are entitled to 
reinstatement upon completion of military service, provided you return or apply for 
reinstatement within the time allowed by law. 

M. Leave Donation 
 

The City will allow employees to transfer accumulated sick, vacation, and compensatory 
time to a coworker with a serious injury or illness who has exhausted all accumulated 
leave. Leave may also be donated to an employee who is caring for a seriously ill family 
member and has exhausted all accumulated leave. The receiving employee must be an 
employee in good standing, have one year of service with the City, and have no 
documented history of abuse of leave for unscheduled absences. The amount of 
donated leave an employee can receive will be evaluated on a case by case basis with 
final approval from the City Manager. An employee called to active military duty who 
has exhausted all available leave is eligible to receive donated leave.  

Leave donations will not be accepted once the receiving employee’s leave or 
employment status has become unpaid. 

Hours of leave donated from co-workers will be converted into a dollar amount and 
then applied to the donee’s account at his/her hourly rate. 

Any requests for leave donation must be made through Human Resources. All 
communication regarding leave donations will be made by Human Resources.  

Represented employees should refer to the respective collective bargaining agreement 
for further information on this subject matter.  

 

  



 
 

CITY OF STAYTON EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK       Page 28 of 48 

IV. Employee Benefits 

This Section does not apply to elected officials or volunteers unless specifically provided for in a 
subsection. 

A. Healthcare Benefits  
Employees who meet the definition of “benefit eligible” under both the City of Stayton’s policy 
and that of its health insurance provider are entitled to the benefit options offered by the City.  
These benefits are subject to change from time to time. The City of Stayton offers medical 
insurance for all of its regular, full-time employees. Employees who wish to enroll on the health 
plan, including eligible dependents, are required to pay a portion of the monthly premium for that 
coverage on a payroll deduction basis.  

The group insurance policy and the summary plan description issued to employees set out the 
terms and conditions of the health insurance plan offered by the City of Stayton, which is subject 
to change. These documents govern all issues relating to employee health insurance. As other 
employee benefits are offered by the City of Stayton, employees will be advised and provided 
with copies of relevant plan documents. Contact the HR representative for more information 
about healthcare benefits. 

B. Retirement 
The City of Stayton offers a Defined Benefit Retirement Plan for all full-time employees except 
sworn Police Officers, which is similar to Oregon PERS but is sponsored by the City of Stayton.  

On the first of the month following the completion of six months of employment, full-time 
employees are eligible to join the plan and will receive a 6% increase in their salary to cover 
their 6% contribution to the retirement plan. Additionally, it is the City’s intention to make 
additional contributions in amounts determined to be required to fund the benefit formula 
amounts under the plan.  

After five years of employment with the City, an employee becomes vested in the retirement 
plan. Being vested means, even if you leave employment with the City, as long as you do not 
withdraw your accumulated contributions from the retirement plan before age 55, you are 
entitled to receive a monthly benefit at retirement. 

Employees who are age 55 or older will automatically become vested in the retirement plan, 
even if they have not been employed with the City for five years.  

The retirement plan is more fully explained in “The Retirement Plan for Employees of City of 
Stayton, Oregon,” available by request from Human Resources. 

C. Long-Term Disability (LTD) 
The City of Stayton provides a long-term disability (LTD) benefits plan to help regular full-time 
employees cope with an illness or injury that results in a long-term absence from employment. 
LTD is designed to ensure a continuing income for employees who are disabled and unable to 
work.  



 
 

CITY OF STAYTON EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK       Page 29 of 48 

This benefit is 100% employer paid and eligible employees may participate in the LTD plan subject 
to all terms and conditions of the agreement between the City of Stayton and the insurance 
carrier.  

Details of the LTD benefits plan including benefit amounts, and limitations and restrictions are 
described in the summary plan descriptions provided to eligible employees. Contact the HR 
representative for more information about LTD benefits. 

D. Life Insurance 
Life insurance offers you and your family important financial protection. The City of Stayton 
provides a basic life insurance plan for regular full-time employees. This benefit is 100% employer 
paid and eligible employees may participate in the life insurance plan subject to all terms and 
conditions of the agreement between the City of Stayton and the insurance carrier.  

For details on the basic life insurance plan including benefit amounts provided to eligible 
employees, contact the HR representative. 

E. Flexible Spending Account (FSA) 
We provide a Flexible Spending Account (FSA) program that allows regular full-time employees to 
have pre-tax dollars deducted from their salaries to pay for eligible out-of-pocket expenses. The 
pre-tax contributions made to the FSA can be used to pay for certain predictable non-reimbursed 
health care expenses and dependent care expenses during the plan year. Contact the HR 
representative to learn more about this program and to enroll for the plan year. 

F. Employee Assistance Program (EAP) 
Through the Employee Assistance Program (EAP), the City of Stayton provides free confidential 
access to professional counseling for help in confronting such personal problems as interpersonal 
conflict, alcohol and other substance abuse, marital and family difficulties, identity theft, financial 
or legal troubles and emotional distress. The EAP is available to employees covered under the City 
of Stayton’s medical insurance and offers problem assessment, short-term counseling and referral 
to appropriate community and private services. Minor concerns can become major problems if 
you ignore them. No issue is too small or too large, and a professional counselor is available to 
help you when you need it. Information regarding this service can be obtained by contacting the 
HR representative.   

G. Conference, Conventions & Civic Involvement 
Decisions concerning attendance at conferences, conventions, or other meetings at City of 
Stayton expense will be made by the department head, with the approval of the City Manager. 
Permission may be granted based on the costs to the City of Stayton and the benefits to the City 
of Stayton from the employee's participation in the conference or the direct relation of the 
employee's work to the subject matter of the meeting.  

The City of Stayton will reimburse an employee for the amount of membership dues incurred by 
an employee provided that the employee has made application through their supervisor and has 
received approval from the City of Stayton for payment of the employee's membership dues.  



 
 

CITY OF STAYTON EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK       Page 30 of 48 

H. Workers’ Compensation and Safety on the Job 
You are protected by workers' compensation insurance under Oregon law. This insurance covers 
you in case of occupational injury or illness by providing, among other things, medical care and 
compensation and temporary or other disability benefits. Employees are expected to work safely 
and in a safe environment. 

Steps to Take if You are Injured on the Job 

If you are injured on the job, City of Stayton wants to know about it and expects to learn about it 
no later than 24 hours after your injury (report all work-related injuries to your supervisor).   

If you seek treatment for your work-related injury and want to apply for workers' compensation 
benefits, you must do all of the following:  

• Report any work-related injury to your supervisor. You must report the injury no later 
than 24 hours after injury. 

• Seek medical treatment and follow-up care if required. 

• Promptly complete a written Employee’s Claim Form (Form 801) and return it to your 
supervisor or the HR representative. 

Failure to timely follow these steps may negatively affect your ability to receive benefits.  

Return to Work 

If you require workers’ compensation leave, you will — under most circumstances — be 
reinstated to the same position that you held at the time your leave began, or to an equivalent 
position, if available. However, you must first submit documentation from a health care provider 
who is familiar with your condition certifying your ability to return to work and perform the 
essential functions of your position.  

Early Return-to-Work Program 

The Return-to-Work program provides guidelines for returning you to work after you have 
suffered an on-the-job injury or illness that results in time loss. This program is not intended as a 
substitute for reasonable accommodation when an injured employee also qualifies as an 
individual with a disability. The Return-to-Work Program is intended to be transitional work, to 
enable you to return to your regular job in a reasonable period of time. 

The Return-to-Work program for job-related injuries consists of a team effort by the City of 
Stayton, injured employees and their treating physicians, and the City’s workers’ compensation 
insurance carrier claims staff. The goal is to return our employees to full employment at the 
earliest possible date that is consistent with their medical condition and the advice of the treating 
physician.  

If your doctor determines that you are able to perform modified work, the City of Stayton will 
attempt to provide you with a temporary job assignment for a reasonable period of time until you 
can resume your regular duties. If, due to a work-related injury, you are offered a modified 
position that has been medically approved, failure to phone in or report at the designated time 
and place may affect your compensation and employment with the City of Stayton. While you are 
on modified or transitional work, you are still subject to all other City of Stayton rules and 
procedures.  



 
 

CITY OF STAYTON EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK       Page 31 of 48 

Overlap with Other Laws 

The City of Stayton will account for other leave and disability laws that might also apply to your 
situation, such as the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) and FMLA or OFLA. If, after returning 
from a workers’ compensation leave, it is determined that you are unable to perform the essential 
functions of your position because of a qualifying disability, you may be entitled to a reasonable 
accommodation, as governed by the ADA and/or applicable Oregon laws covering disabilities in 
the workplace. 

  



 
 

CITY OF STAYTON EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK       Page 32 of 48 

V. Miscellaneous Policies 

A. Alcohol/Drug Use, Abuse, and Testing Policy 
This Section does not apply to elected officials. 

Prohibited Conduct 

The City is a no-tolerance employer and does not allow drug or alcohol use or impairment while 
on duty, as further described below.  The following conduct is strictly prohibited and will result in 
disciplinary action up to and including termination: 

• Possession, sale and/or use of drugs on the City of Stayton premises, while in City of 
Stayton-provided clothes, while on City of Stayton or work-related travel, or while on City 
of Stayton business or while in a City vehicle (other than employees who possess drugs 
while they are engaged in law-enforcement work); 

• Failure to notify City of Stayton of an arrest or conviction under any criminal drug or 
alcohol statute within five days of the arrest or conviction;  

• Possession and/or consumption of alcoholic beverages or being under the influence of 
alcohol during work hours, while in City of Stayton-provided clothes or on City of Stayton 
premises, while operating an City of Stayton vehicle (or while operating a personal vehicle 
in connection with the performance of City of Stayton business), or while performing job 
functions; or 

• Being under the influence of drugs or alcohol while on duty, on City of Stayton premises, 
on City of Stayton work time, while in City of Stayton-provided clothes, while on City of 
Stayton business, or while operating a City of Stayton vehicle (or while operating a 
personal vehicle in connection with the performance of City of Stayton business). Under 
the Influence is defined as any detectable level of drugs (in excess of trace amounts which 
can be attributable only to secondary exposure) in an employee’s blood or urine or any 
noticeable or perceptible impairment of the employee’s mental or physical facilities, or 
any such impairment coupled with a blood-alcohol level of at least 0.02 percent. 

 
As used in this policy, "drug" includes, but is not limited to, any controlled substance listed in 
Schedules I through V of the Federal Controlled Substance Act, including marijuana that is 
otherwise lawful to use under Oregon, Washington or any other state’s law, as well as any over-
the-counter medication that may impair the employee’s job performance. 

Prescription Medication and Medical Marijuana 

An employee who uses prescription or over-the-counter drugs that may impair the employee’s 
ability to safely perform the job, or that may affect the safety or well-being of others, must notify 
their supervisor of such use immediately before starting or resuming work. The City of Stayton 
may reassign the employee using the prescription drugs to other work or take other appropriate 
action to accommodate the physical or mental effects of the medication. Failure to report use of 
prescription drugs covered by this rule will subject an employee to disciplinary action, up to and 
including termination.  

Employees who use medical marijuana in connection with a disability should discuss with their 
supervisor other means of accommodating the disability in the workplace, as City of Stayton will 



 
 

CITY OF STAYTON EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK       Page 33 of 48 

not agree to allow an employee to use medical marijuana as an accommodation. (See “Disability 
Accommodation Policy,” above.) 

Testing 

City of Stayton reserves the right to: 

• Subject applicants who are given a conditional offer of employment for a safety-sensitive 
position to a drug and/or alcohol test; 

• Test employees reasonably suspected of using drugs or alcohol in violation of this policy;  

• Discipline or discharge employees who test positive or otherwise violate this policy; and 

• Test employees when they: (1) cause or contribute to workplace-related accidents; (2) injure 
themselves or another employee requiring offsite medical attention; or (3) when the City of 
Stayton reasonably suspects that the accident or injury may have been caused by drug or 
alcohol use.  

The phrase “reasonable suspicion” (or any variation) used in this policy means an articulable belief 
based on specific facts and reasonable inferences drawn from those facts that an employee is 
more likely than not under the influence of controlled substances or alcohol or has used 
prescription drugs or alcohol in violation of this policy. Circumstances which can constitute a basis 
for determining "reasonable suspicion" may include, but are not limited to: 

• An observed pattern of abnormal or erratic behavior; 

• Information provided by a reliable and credible source; 

• A work-related accident; 

• Direct observation of drug or alcohol use, or paraphernalia; 

• Presence of the physical symptoms of drug or alcohol use (i.e., glassy or bloodshot eyes, 
alcohol odor on breath, slurred speech, poor coordination and/or reflexes); 

• Unexplained significant deterioration in individual job performance, paired with any other 
of these factors; 

• Unexplained or suspicious absenteeism or tardiness; 

• Employee admissions regarding drug or alcohol use; and 

• Unexplained absences from normal work areas where there is reason to suspect drug or 
alcohol related activity. 

Supervisors should detail in writing the specific facts, symptoms or observations that form the 
basis for their determination that reasonable cause exists to warrant alcohol or controlled 
substance testing of an employee or a search. This documentation shall be forwarded to the HR 
representative. Whenever possible, supervisors should locate a second employee or witness to 
corroborate his/her “reasonable suspicion” findings.  

An employee whose initial laboratory screening test for controlled substances yields a positive 
result shall be given a second test. The second test shall use a portion of the same test sample 
withdrawn from the employee for use in the initial screening test. If the second test confirms the 
initial positive test result, the employee shall be notified of the results in writing. The letter of 
notification shall state the particular substance identified by the laboratory tests. The employee 



 
 

CITY OF STAYTON EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK       Page 34 of 48 

may request a third test of the sample within 24 hours of receiving the letter of notification, but 
such testing will be paid for by the employee. 

Search of Property 

When reasonable suspicion exists to believe an employee possesses alcohol, prescription drugs 
or a controlled substance on City of Stayton property, or has otherwise violated provisions of this 
rule regarding possession, sale or use of controlled substances, prescription drugs or alcohol, the 
City of Stayton may search the employee's possessions located on City of Stayton property, 
including but not limited to: locker, toolbox, desk, computer, and common areas. Employees have 
no expectation of privacy in any items they bring on to City of Stayton property, or in property, 
equipment or supplies provided by the City of Stayton to employee. Keys for any locked cabinets 
or similar will be provided to the supervisor. 

Employee Refusal to Test/Search 

An employee who refuses to consent to a test or a reasonable suspicion search may be subject to 
disciplinary action up to and including termination. The reasons for the refusal shall be considered 
in determining the appropriate disciplinary action. 

An employee who refuses to cooperate with any tests required by this policy is also subject to 
discipline, up to and including termination. This includes, but is not limited to, tampering with, or 
attempting to tamper with, a specimen sample, using chemicals or other ingredients to mask or 
otherwise cover up the presence of metabolites, drugs or alcohol in a specimen, or providing a 
blood or urine specimen that was produced by anyone or anything other than the employee being 
tested. 

Crimes Involving Drugs and/or Alcohol 

Employees shall report:  

• Any criminal arrest or conviction for drug- or alcohol-related activity within five days of 
the arrest or conviction; 

• Entry into a drug court or diversion program; or 
• Loss or limitation of driving privileges when the employee's job requires a valid driver’s 

license (regular or CDL). 

Failure to report as required will result in disciplinary action up to and including termination. 

Drug and Alcohol Treatment 

The City of Stayton recognizes that alcohol and drug use may be a sign of chemical dependency 
and that employees with alcohol and drug problems can be successfully treated. The City of 
Stayton is willing to help employees in good standing obtain appropriate treatment. 

An employee who believes that they have a problem involving the use of alcohol or drugs should 
ask a supervisor or the HR representative for assistance. 

The City of Stayton will work with an employee to identify all benefits and benefit programs that 
may be available to help deal with the problem. Attendance at any rehabilitation or treatment 
program may be required and may be a shared financial responsibility of the employee and City 
of Stayton to the extent its existing benefits package covers some or all of the program costs. 



 
 

CITY OF STAYTON EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK       Page 35 of 48 

Although the City of Stayton recognizes that alcohol and drug abuse can be successfully treated 
and is willing to work with employees who may suffer from such problems, it is the employee's 
responsibility to seek assistance before drug or alcohol problems lead to disciplinary action. Once 
a violation of City of Stayton policy is discovered, the employee's willingness to seek City of 
Stayton or outside assistance will not "excuse" the violation and generally will have no bearing on 
the determination of appropriate disciplinary action. 

Confidentiality 

All information from an employee's drug and alcohol evaluation is confidential and only those 
with a need to know are to be informed of test results. Disclosure of such information to any other 
person, agency, or the City of Stayton is prohibited unless written authorization is obtained from 
the employee. 

B. Cellular Devices Policy  
This policy applies to employee use of cell phones, smart phones (including iPhones, 
“smartphones” and similar devices), tablets and similar devices, all of which are referred to as 
“cellular devices” in the Cellular Devices Policy.  

Cell Phones and Cellular Devices in General 

Employees are allowed to bring personal cell phones and cellular devices to work with them, but 
personal use must be kept to a minimum and not interfere with the performance of work. During 
working hours, employees should refrain from using them except in an emergency, during a meal 
period or rest break, or for reasons that increase work efficiency (such as calling to secure child 
care).  

Employees who use personal or City of Stayton-provided cell phones/cellular devices may not 
violate the City of Stayton’s policies against harassment and discrimination. Thus, employees who 
use a personal or City of Stayton-provided cell phone/cellular device to send a text or instant 
message to another employee (or to a citizen or someone not employed by the City of Stayton) 
that is harassing or otherwise in violation of the City of Stayton’s no-harassment and no-
discrimination policies may be subject to discipline up to and including termination. 

Reporting Lost or Stolen Cell Phones 

If a personal or City-issued cell phone stores email address, phone numbers or other work or 
private information about other employees, customer, or clients, or sensitive or confidential 
workplace information and it is lost or stolen, the employee is required to report the loss to a 
supervisor immediately.   

Employee Use of City of Stayton-Provided Cell Phones/Cellular Devices 

Cell phones/cellular devices may be made available to City of Stayton employees on a limited 
basis to conduct the City of Stayton’s business. Determinations as to which employees receive 
City of Stayton-provided cell phones will be made on a case-by-case basis; employees are not 
guaranteed a cell phone or cellular device. In some cases, the City of Stayton may provide a 
monthly cellular telephone allowance to employees who regularly make calls on behalf of the City 
of Stayton away from the office using their personal phone.   

Cell phones or cellular devices assigned to employees are intended to provide for the efficient 
conduct of business related to the City of Stayton. Personal calls (outgoing and incoming) will be 
allowed infrequently, for limited duration. Further, employees who receive a cell phone or cellular 



 
 

CITY OF STAYTON EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK       Page 36 of 48 

device from the City of Stayton must acknowledge and understand that because the cell 
phone/cellular device is paid for and provided by City of Stayton, or subsidized by City of Stayton, 
any communications (including text messages) received by or sent from the cell phone/cellular 
device may be subject to inspection and review if City of Stayton has reasonable grounds to 
believe that the employee’s use of the cell phone violates any City of Stayton policy.  The 
employee has no expectation of privacy regarding such data. The City may require access to an 
employee’s personal cell phone/cellular device in connection with an investigation or review into 
matters stored on the cell phone. 

Employees may not use City of Stayton-provided cell phones or cellular devices to call 1-900, 1-
976 or similar “pay per minute” services. Further, family and friends may not use an employee’s 
City of Stayton-provided cell phone/cellular device. 

Cell Phones/Cellular Devices and Public Records 

City of Stayton-related business conducted on City of Stayton-provided or personal cell 
phones/cellular devices may be subject to filing and public record storage, disclosure and 
production under Oregon’s Public Records laws or in connection with litigation filed against the 
City of Stayton. 

Cell Phone/Cellular Device Use While Driving 

The use of a cell phone or cellular device while driving may present a hazard to the driver, other 
employees and the general public. Subject to a few narrow exceptions for emergency or public 
safety purposes, Oregon law also prohibits the use of handheld cell phones while driving, even if 
the driving is for work-related reasons. This policy is meant to ensure the safe operation of City of 
Stayton vehicles and the operation of private vehicles while an employee is on work time. It 
applies equally to the usage of employee-owned cell phones and phones provided or subsidized 
by the City of Stayton. 

Employees are prohibited from using handheld cell phones for any purpose while driving on City 
of Stayton-authorized or City of Stayton-related business. This policy also prohibits employees 
from using a cell phone or other cellular device to send or receive text or “instant” messages while 
driving on City of Stayton business (other than those employees engaged in law enforcement 
work). Should an employee need to make a business call while driving, the employee must locate 
a lawfully designated area to park and make the call, unless the employee uses a hands-free cell 
phone or cellular device for the call. In either situation, such calls should be kept short and should 
the circumstances warrant (for example, heavy traffic, bad weather), the employee should locate 
a lawfully designated area to park to continue or make the call, even if the employee is using a 
hands-free device. Violation of this policy may subject the employee to discipline, up to and 
including termination. 

C. Use of City of Stayton Email and Electronic Equipment, Facilities and Services  
The City of Stayton uses multiple types of electronic equipment, facilities and services for 
producing documents, research and communication including, but not limited to, computers, 
software, email, copiers, telephones, voicemail, fax machines, online services, cell phones 
(including text messaging), the Internet and any new technologies used in the future. This policy 
governs the use of such City of Stayton property. 



 
 

CITY OF STAYTON EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK       Page 37 of 48 

Ownership 

All information and communications in any format, stored by any means on or received via City 
of Stayton’s electronic equipment, facilities or services is the sole property of the City of Stayton, 
and is subject to inspection or monitoring at all times. 

Use 

All of the City of Stayton’s electronic equipment, facilities and services are provided and intended 
to be used primarily for business purposes. You are not allowed personal use of the City of 
Stayton’s systems without a supervisor’s approval. Any approved personal use must not interfere 
with normal business activities, violate any laws, involve solicitation, be associated with any for-
profit outside business activity, or potentially embarrass the City.   

Inspection and Monitoring 

Employee communications, both business and personal, made using City of Stayton electronic 
equipment, facilities, and services are not private. Any data created, received or transmitted using 
City of Stayton equipment, facilities or services are the property of the City of Stayton and usually 
can be recovered even though deleted by the user. 

All information and communications in any format, stored by any means on the City of Stayton’s 
electronic equipment, facilities or services, are subject to inspection at any time without notice. 
Personal passwords may be used for purposes of security, but the use of a personal password 
does not affect the City of Stayton’s ownership of the electronic information, electronic 
equipment, facilities, or services, or the City of Stayton’s right to inspect such information. The 
City of Stayton reserves the right to access and review electronic files, documents, archived 
material, messages, email, voicemail and other such material to monitor the use of all of City of 
Stayton’s electronic equipment, facilities and services, including all communications and internet 
usage and resources visited. The City of Stayton will override all personal passwords if it becomes 
necessary to do so for any reason. 

Unauthorized Access 

Employees are not permitted unauthorized access to the electronic communications of other 
employees or third parties unless directed to do so by City of Stayton management. No employee 
can examine, change or use another person’s files, output or username unless they have explicit 
authorization from the supervisor to do so. 

Security 

Many forms of electronic communication are not secure. Employees who use cell phones, 
cordless phones, fax communications or email sent over the Internet should be aware that such 
forms of communication are subject to interception and these methods of communicating should 
not be used for privileged, confidential, or sensitive information unless appropriate encryption 
measures are implemented.  Employees shall not download any computer programs unless 
authorized to do so. 

Inappropriate Web Sites 

City of Stayton’s electronic equipment, facilities or services must not be used to visit Internet sites 
that contain obscene, hateful or other objectionable materials, or that would otherwise violate 
City of Stayton’s policies on harassment and discrimination unless authorized by the Chief of 
Police or City Manager or can be shown to be a part of a legitimate work purpose.  



 
 

CITY OF STAYTON EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK       Page 38 of 48 

D. Social Media 
For purposes of this policy, “social media” includes all means of communicating or posting 
information or content of any sort on the Internet, including to your own or someone else’s web 
log or blog, journal or diary, personal or commercial website, social networking website, web 
bulletin board or a chat room, whether or not associated or affiliated with City of Stayton, as well 
as any other form of electronic communication. 

Ultimately, you are solely responsible for what you post online. Before creating online content, 
consider some of the risks and rewards that are involved. Keep in mind that any of your conduct 
that adversely affects your job performance, the performance of co-workers, or otherwise 
adversely affects our citizens or people who work on behalf of the City of Stayton or the City of 
Stayton’s legitimate business interests may result in disciplinary action, up to and including 
termination. 

Employees are discouraged from taking pictures while at work unless they are for a legitimate 
work purpose. 
 
Prohibited Postings 

Employees will be subject to discipline, up to and including termination, if they create and post 
any text, images or other media that violate any City of Stayton policies, including the City of 
Stayton’s no-harassment and no-discrimination and workplace violence policies. Similarly, 
postings that include threats of violence, that are physically threatening or intimidating, bullying 
or harassing, will not be tolerated and may subject an employee to discipline, up to and including 
termination. 

Express only your personal opinions. Never represent yourself as a spokesperson for City of 
Stayton, unless you are authorized by your supervisor to do so. If City of Stayton is a subject of 
the content you are creating, be clear and open about the fact that you are a City of Stayton 
employee, and make it clear that your views do not represent those of the City of Stayton or its 
employees or elected officials.  

Encouraged Conduct 

Always be fair and courteous to co-workers, the citizens we serve, City of Stayton employees and 
elected officials, and suppliers or other third parties who do business with the City of Stayton.  

Also, keep in mind that you are more likely to resolve work-related complaints by speaking directly 
with your co-workers, or by utilizing our Open-Door Policy, than by posting complaints to a social 
media outlet. If you decide to post complaints or criticism, avoid using statements, photographs, 
video or audio that reasonably could be viewed as malicious, obscene, threatening or 
intimidating, that disparage citizens, co-workers, City of Stayton employees or elected officials, 
that might constitute harassment or bullying, and/or that violate City of Stayton policies. 
Examples of such conduct might include offensive posts that a reasonable person would perceive 
as calculated to intentionally harm an individual’s personal or professional reputation, posts that 
could contribute to a hostile work environment on the basis of race, sex, disability, religion or any 
other status protected by law or City of Stayton policy. 

Maintain the confidentiality of the City of Stayton’s confidential information. Do not post internal 
reports, policies, procedures or other internal, City of Stayton-related confidential 
communications or information. (See “Confidential City of Stayton Information” policy, below.) 



 
 

CITY OF STAYTON EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK       Page 39 of 48 

Nothing in this policy is meant to prevent an employee from exercising his or her right to make a 
complaint of discrimination or other workplace misconduct, engage in lawful collective bargaining 
activity, or to express an opinion on a matter of public concern that does not unduly disrupt City 
of Stayton operations. Employees are free to express themselves as private citizens on social 
media sites, but an employee’s exercise of expression is balanced against the City of Stayton’s 
interest in the effective and efficient fulfillment of its responsibilities to the public. 

Request for Employee Social Media Passwords 

City of Stayton supervisors are prohibited by law from requiring or requesting an employee or an 
applicant for employment to disclose or to provide access through the employee or applicant's 
username and password, password or other means of authentication that provides access to a 
personal social media account. This includes, without limitation, a username and password that 
would otherwise allow a supervisor to access a private email account not provided by the City of 
Stayton. 

Nothing in this policy prohibits the City of Stayton from requiring an employee to produce content 
from his or her social media or internet account in connection with a City of Stayton-sponsored 
investigation into potential misconduct, unlawful or unethical behavior, or policy or rule 
violations. 

E. Confidential City of Stayton Information  
Employees must not access, use or disclose sensitive or confidential information or data except 
in accordance with City of Stayton policies, practices and procedures, and as authorized by state 
or federal laws or regulations. Employees with access to confidential information, including but 
not limited to customer or employee financial, medical or personal information (including, 
without limitation, Social Security numbers), are responsible for the safekeeping and handling of 
that information to prevent unauthorized disclosure. Employees who access, use or disclose 
confidential information contrary to Oregon or federal laws or for personal use or financial gain 
may be subject to civil or criminal penalties under those laws, in addition to appropriate 
disciplinary action for violating this policy. 

No records or information including (without limitation) protected medical data, documents, files, 
records, computer files or similar materials (except in the ordinary course of performing duties 
on behalf of the City of Stayton) may be removed from our premises without permission from the 
City Manager. Likewise, any materials developed by City of Stayton employees in the performance 
of their jobs is the property of the City of Stayton and may not be used for personal or financial 
gain. Additionally, the contents of records or information otherwise obtained in regard to the City 
of Stayton’s business may not be disclosed to anyone, except where required for a business 
purpose or when required by law.  

F. Ethics 
This subsection applies to all employees, volunteers, and elected officials of the City.  At the City 
of Stayton, we believe in treating people with respect and adhering to ethical and fair business 
practices. We expect employees to avoid situations that may compromise their reputation or 
integrity, or that might cause their personal interests to conflict with the interests of the City of 
Stayton or the City of Stayton’s citizens. 

We at the City of Stayton are public employees, and as such, are also subject to the State of 
Oregon’s ethics laws. In some cases, these laws provide additional limitations on employees, such 



 
 

CITY OF STAYTON EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK       Page 40 of 48 

as prohibitions on gifts and strict definitions of conflict of interest. If you are coming to the City of 
Stayton from work in the private sector, you may find that some activities that are common 
business practices in the private sector are prohibited in the public sector. Information on these 
laws is available at the Oregon Government Ethics Commission website: 
http://www.oregon.gov/OGEC. 

The general rule is that as a City representative, you are a public official under Oregon law.  This 
means you cannot use or attempt to use your position to obtain a financial benefit. A “financial 
benefit” can be either an opportunity for monetary gain or an opportunity to avoid an expense. 
Not only are you prohibited from using your position for a financial benefit, but this rule also 
applies to your family members, members of your household, and businesses with which you are 
associated.  Further, you cannot accept gifts over $50 per year from someone with an 
administrative or legislative interest in your decisions as a public official.  Lastly, you must report 
any conflicts of interest between your personal interests and your duties to the City to your 
supervisor. For more details on these issues, consult with HR or go to:  
http://www.oregon.gov/OGEC.   

If you have questions about whether an activity meets the City of Stayton’s or Oregon’s ethical 
standards, please talk with Human Resources. Employees who violate the Ethics Policy, or who 
violate Oregon ethics laws, may be subject to disciplinary action up to and including termination. 

Nepotism 

Relatives of current employees or individuals involved in an intimate personal or financial 
relationship with a current employee are eligible for hire at the City of Stayton subject to the same 
selection process and job requirements and will be evaluated in the same manner as any other 
applicant. However, persons will not be placed into positions in which one family member (as 
defined by Oregon ethics law) or person involved in an intimate personal relationship or financial 
relationship would fall under the direct line of supervision of the other family member or partner.   

All employees shall avoid being in a position where they are subject to supervisory or oversight 
authority by a family member, member of their household, or a person with whom they have an 
intimate personal or financial relationship. If the relative relationship is established after 
employment as a result of organizational restructure, marriage, or a development of an intimate 
personal or financial relationship, the employees involved have an obligation to immediately 
inform their supervisor, or Human Resources. The employees and the City of Stayton will jointly 
make a good faith effort to find an alternative assignment for one of the two employees or reroute 
the chain of command. Depending on business need, this may include, but is not limited to: 
restructuring duties, assignment to another position, and assignment to another shift or change 
in supervision.   

Policy violations including, but not limited to, failure to disclose a family relation, or an intimate 
personal or financial relationship, will be reviewed by the City of Stayton. Policy violations may 
result in progressive discipline of employees, up to and including termination of employment. 
Supervisors and lead workers may be disciplined for taking employment actions based upon the 
relationship.  

G. Open-Door Policy  
The City of Stayton’s Open-Door Policy is based on our belief that open, honest communication 
between supervisors and employees should be a common business practice. The City of Stayton’s 
directors and supervisors are responsible for creating a work environment where employee input 

http://www.oregon.gov/OGEC
http://www.oregon.gov/OGEC


 
 

CITY OF STAYTON EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK       Page 41 of 48 

is welcomed, and where issues are identified early and shared without the fear of retaliation 
(when the employee provides the input in good faith). If you have a complaint, suggestion, or 
question about your job, working conditions, or the treatment you are receiving from anyone in 
the City of Stayton, please raise them first with your immediate supervisor. If you are not satisfied 
with the response from your immediate supervisor, or if your issue involves your immediate 
supervisor, request to have the facts/situation reviewed by the HR representative.  

H. Outside Employment 
This subsection does not apply to volunteers or elected officials. 

Generally, employees may obtain employment with an employer other than the City of Stayton 
or engage in private income-producing activity of their own so long as that activity is not otherwise 
prohibited by these rules, conflicts with City objectives or image, or interferes with your work. 
Employees are responsible for assuring that their outside employment does not conflict with 
these rules. 

Employees may not accept outside employment that involves: 

• The use of City of Stayton time (including the employee’s work time), City of Stayton 
facilities, equipment and supplies, or the prestige or influence of the employee's position 
with the City of Stayton. In other words, the employee may not engage in private business 
interests or other employment activities on the City of Stayton’s time or using the City of 
Stayton’s property; 

• The performance of an act that may later be subject to control, inspection, review or audit 
by the City; or 

• Receipt of money or anything of value for performance of duties that the employee is 
required to perform for the City of Stayton. 

• Violates Oregon’s ethics laws in relation to employee’s duties at the City. 

The City of Stayton requires employees to report outside employment to the department head 
before the outside employment begins. Thereafter, an employee must provide an update to their 
supervisor on an annual basis, or sooner if any changes in outside employment occurs. Employees 
who accept outside employment in violation of this policy may be subject to discipline, up to and 
including termination. 

I. Criminal Arrests and Convictions 
This subsection does not apply to elected officials. 

Employees must promptly and fully disclose to their supervisor on the next working day: 

• All arrests, citations, convictions, guilty pleas, no contest pleas or diversions that result from 
conduct which occurred while on duty or at a City conference or function, while representing 
the City in your official capacity, on City of Stayton property, or involving an City of Stayton 
vehicle (see also “Alcohol/Drug Use, Abuse and Testing” policy above);  

• All arrests, citations, convictions, guilty pleas or no contest pleas that result from crimes 
involving the theft or misappropriation of property, including money or which reflect poorly 
upon the City or may cause the public to lose trust in the City or in you as a public official. 



 
 

CITY OF STAYTON EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK       Page 42 of 48 

• If you are arrested, cited or convicted of a violation of any law that will prevent you from 
performing the essential functions of your position. 

Reporting an arrest or conviction will not necessarily result in discipline or termination of 
employment. Situations will be evaluated on a case-by-case basis. 

Employees who are unavailable to report for work because they have been sent to jail or prison 
may not use sick leave to cover the absence. 

J. Political Activity 
This subsection does not apply to elected officials. 

Employees may engage in political activity except to the extent prohibited by Oregon law when 
on the job during working hours or while representing the City. This means that employees 
cannot: 

• Aid or oppose any political committee, nomination or election of a candidate, ballot 
measure or referendum, or political campaign while on the job during working hours (this 
is not intended to restrict the right of City of Stayton employees to express their personal 
political views); or 

• Be disciplined or rewarded in any manner for either giving or withholding money or 
services for any political committee or campaign during their off-duty time. 

K.  Bad Weather/Emergency Closing 
Except for regularly scheduled holidays identified by the City of Stayton (see “Holidays” 
section above), the City of Stayton is open for business on Mondays through Fridays during normal 
business hours. If there are circumstances beyond our control, such as inclement weather, a 
national crisis, or other emergencies that make one or more of our office locations inaccessible 
for all or part of a regularly scheduled workday, the City Manager (or their designee) will decide 
whether to and to what extent the City of Stayton will close and will notify the City’s management 
team for the purpose of contacting employees. If no official notice has been received, the 
employee should refer to the North Santiam School District weather notices for snow and/or ice. 

In the event of extreme bad weather, we recognize that each employee’s ability to safely reach 
work may be different. If you cannot safely report to work in such circumstances, you should 
contact your supervisor. If staff cannot reach the office and are able to serve the City of Stayton 
from home, you should do so, subject to approval by your supervisor. Safety and a trustworthy 
approach are your guides. 

The following compensation guidelines will apply to employees: 
 

 IF… THEN… 

Non-exempt employee arrives late to work. Absence is charged to comp time, vacation 
leave, or unpaid time off. 

Employee cannot arrive to work. 
Absence is charged to comp time, vacation 
leave, or, at supervisor’s discretion, unpaid 
time off. 



 
 

CITY OF STAYTON EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK       Page 43 of 48 

Supervisor approves employee’s request to 
leave early. 

Remaining hours are charged to comp time, 
vacation leave, or unpaid time off for non-
exempt employees. 

Due to adverse weather, national crises, or 
other emergencies, employee directed to 
arrive late by supervisor (under the direction of 
the City Manager or his/her authorized 
designee). 

Employee is paid for late arrival, no charge 
to leave accrual. 

Due to adverse weather, national crises, or 
other emergencies, employee is sent home 
early by supervisor (under the direction of the 
City Administrator or his/her authorized 
designee). 

Employee is paid for remainder of workday, 
no charge to leave accrual. 

City facilities are closed due to adverse 
weather, national crises, or other emergencies 
under the direction of the City Manager or 
his/her authorized designee. 

Employee is paid for the entire workday, no 
charge to leave accrual. 

 

L. Driving While on Business 
Employees using a private vehicle to conduct the City of Stayton’s business must possess a valid 
driver’s license and must carry auto liability insurance. Employees who use their own vehicles for 
authorized City of Stayton business should make any necessary arrangements with their insurance 
carriers.  

While on City of Stayton business, drivers are expected to make every reasonable effort to 
operate their vehicle safely, with due regard for potential hazards, weather, and road conditions. 
Drivers are to obey all traffic laws, posted signs and signals, and requirements applicable to the 
vehicle being operated. Seatbelts are to be used in all vehicles while on business. Drivers are to 
ensure that the use of prescribed or over the counter drugs does not interfere with their ability 
to drive while on business; operating a vehicle under the influence of alcohol or controlled 
substances is prohibited. Employees are responsible for notifying their supervisor of any 
subsequent restrictions, limitations, or other change in their driving status within 72 hours of the 
change or new restrictions/limitations. See also, “Cell Phone Use While Driving” policy, above. 

Employees who receive a ticket or citation while driving a City of Stayton-owned vehicle or while 
on City of Stayton business will be responsible for paying the fine (if any) associated with the ticket 
or citation must report the incident to his or her supervisor, and may face discipline, up to and 
including termination. 

M. Workplace Violence 
The City of Stayton recognizes the importance of a safe workplace for employees, customers, 
vendors, contractors, and the general public. A work environment that is safe and comfortable 
enhances employee satisfaction as well as productivity. Therefore, threats and acts of violence 
made by an employee against another employee, volunteer, elected official, or member of the 
public will be dealt with in a zero-tolerance manner by the City of Stayton. 



 
 

CITY OF STAYTON EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK       Page 44 of 48 

All employees have an obligation to report any incidents that pose a real or potential risk of harm 
to employees or others associated with the City of Stayton, or that threaten the safety, security 
or financial interests of the City of Stayton. Employees must also report threats or acts of violence 
by non-employees, such as vendors or citizens, against any employee, volunteer or elected 
official. Employees should make such reports directly to their supervisor or Human Resources.  

The City of Stayton also may conduct an investigation where the behavior raises concern about 
work performance, reliability, honesty, or potentially threatens the safety of co-workers or others. 
See policy on “Workplace Inspections.” 

N. Workplace Inspections — No Right to Privacy or Confidentiality  
This policy applies to inspections and investigations conducted by the City of Stayton pursuant to 
policy or law unless otherwise modified by a different policy in this Handbook. 

An employee investigation may include, but is not limited to, investigation of criminal records; it 
may also include a search of desks, work areas, file cabinets, voicemail systems and computer 
systems. Employees are strongly discouraged from storing personal items in the desks, lockers, 
work areas, file cabinets and other office equipment or furniture, as well as voicemail and 
computer systems assigned to them by the City of Stayton; these areas are not private.  

All information related to reports generated from inspections and investigations, including the 
name of the reporting employee(s), will be kept as confidential as possible under the 
circumstances.  

O. Smoke-Free Workplace 
The City of Stayton provides a tobacco-free environment for all employees and visitors. For 
purposes of this policy, “tobacco” includes the smoking of any tobacco-based product, smoking 
in any form (including, without limitation, cigars and e-cigarettes), and the use of oral tobacco 
products or “chew/spit” tobacco. Marijuana is also prohibited under this policy. This policy applies 
to employees, volunteers, and any visitors to City of Stayton property, vehicles or 
facilities/buildings. 

City of Stayton buildings and vehicles are tobacco- and marijuana-free areas. Tobacco/marijuana 
use is prohibited during working hours. Further, City of Stayton prohibits tobacco/marijuana use 
in or around City of Stayton vehicles and equipment or machinery.  

If you wish to smoke tobacco, you must do so outside of City of Stayton’s facilities/buildings, only 
in designated smoking areas, and out of visitor view. Smoking is not allowed near building 
entrances; Oregon law prohibits smoking within 10 feet of building entrances and other openings, 
including second-story windows. City of Stayton has established employee smoking areas that 
your supervisor can show you. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

CITY OF STAYTON EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK       Page 45 of 48 

VI. Discipline 

This Section does not apply to elected officials. 

A. Workplace Rules and Prohibited Conduct 
Any violation of the rules or prohibited conduct in this policy may result in discipline, up to and 
including termination. This list of prohibited conduct is illustrative only; other types of conduct 
injurious to security, personal safety, employee welfare and City of Stayton’s operations, some of 
which are described elsewhere in this Handbook, may also be grounds for discipline, up to and 
including termination. 

• Falsification of employment or other City of Stayton records; lying regarding a City matter 
or matter pertaining to your employment. 

• Recording of work time of another employee or allowing any other employee to record 
your work time or allowing falsification of any time sheets (your own or another 
employee’s). 

• Theft or the deliberate or careless damage or destruction of any City of Stayton property, 
or the property of any other employee, citizen, vendor or third party. 

• Unauthorized use of City of Stayton equipment, materials or facilities. 

• Provoking a fight or fighting during work hours or on City of Stayton property. 

• Engaging in criminal conduct while at work. 

• Causing, creating or participating in a significant or substantial disruption of work during 
working hours on City of Stayton property. 

• Insubordination, including but not limited to repeated failure or refusal to obey the orders 
or instructions of a supervisor or member of management, or the use of abusive or 
threatening language toward another City of Stayton employee, customer or vender. 

• Failure to notify a supervisor when unable to report to work, or when leaving work during 
normal working hours without permission from a supervisor to do so. 

• Repeated failure to observe work schedules, including rest breaks and meal periods. You 
are expected to be at work on time, remain until your workday ends, and perform the 
work assigned to or requested of you. 

• Sleeping or malingering on the job. 

• Excessive personal telephone calls or texting during working hours. 

• Unprofessional appearance during normal business hours. 

• Failing to attend scheduled work sessions and related activities at conferences, 
workshops, or educational events that are paid for by the City of Stayton. 

• Misrepresentation of City of Stayton policies, practices, procedures, or your status or 
authority to enter into agreements on behalf of the City of Stayton. Employees may not 
use the City of Stayton’s name, logo, likeness, facilities, assets or other resources of the 
City of Stayton for personal gain or private interests. 



 
 

CITY OF STAYTON EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK       Page 46 of 48 

• Violations of the Ethics Policy or Oregon’s Ethics laws. 

• Violation of any safety, health, security or City of Stayton policy, rule or procedure. 
Employees are expected to act in accordance with all appropriate codes, laws, 
regulations, and policies, regardless of whether they are set by the City of Stayton or 
outside regulatory or legislative bodies. 

• Harassment, bullying or discrimination that violates City of Stayton policy. 

This statement of prohibited conduct does not alter the City of Stayton’s policy of at-will 
employment. Except for employees subject to a collective bargaining agreement or contract of 
employment, the City of Stayton remains free to terminate the employment relationship at any 
time, with or without cause or notice, subject only to these policies. 

B. Corrective Action/Discipline Policy 
Employees are expected to perform to the best of their abilities at all times. There will be 
occasions, however, where employees perform at an unsatisfactory level, violate a policy or law, 
or commit an act that is inappropriate. When performance or conduct does not meet City of 
Stayton standards, the City of Stayton will determine whether it will terminate the employee’s 
employment or provide the employee a reasonable opportunity to correct the deficiency through 
progressive discipline (such as, in no particular order, corrective counseling, verbal warnings, 
written warnings, suspensions without pay, performance improvement plans or last chance 
agreements and demotions). The corrective action process will not always commence with a 
verbal counseling or include any particular sequence or steps. Some acts, particularly those that 
are intentional or serious, may warrant more severe action (including termination) on the first or 
subsequent offense. 

In lieu of terminating the employment of an employee, the City of Stayton may choose to provide 
the employee a final opportunity to continue employment in the form of a last-chance agreement. 
The City of Stayton may also choose to send the employee to training or an education opportunity. 

In all cases, the City of Stayton will determine the nature and extent of any discipline based upon 
the circumstances of each individual case, and any applicable collective bargaining or employment 
agreement provisions. 

B. Retirement or Resignation from Employment 
This subsection does not apply to volunteers or elected officials. 

If you choose to resign or retire, it is anticipated that you will give the City of Stayton as much 
notice as possible — preferably a minimum of two weeks.  If you do not give a two-week notice 
of your intent to leave the City of Stayton, you will not be eligible for re-employment at a later 
date and the City may, at its discretion deduct up to 80 hours from your accrued vacation leave 
account. 

Employees who miss three or more consecutive work days without contacting their immediate 
supervisor are typically considered to have resigned their employment. 

If the employee’s decision to resign is based on a situation that could be corrected, the employee 
is encouraged to discuss it with their supervisor before making a final decision. 

Employees must return all City of Stayton property, including phones, computers, identification 
cards, credit cards, keys, and manuals, to City of Stayton on or before their last day of work.  



 
 

CITY OF STAYTON EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK       Page 47 of 48 

C. References 
All requests for references or recommendations must be directed to the HR representative. No 
director, supervisor or employee is authorized to release references for current or former 
employees. Directors and supervisors are expressly prohibited from providing LinkedIn 
“recommendations” or using a website on the internet to discuss a current or former employee’s 
performance or termination of employment. 

  



 
 

CITY OF STAYTON EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK       Page 48 of 48 

Acknowledgement of Receipt of Employee Handbook 
 

 

I acknowledge that I have received and will read a copy of City of Stayton’s 2020 Employee Handbook.   I 
also understand that a copy of the Employee Handbook is available to me at any time to review in the HR 
representative’s office. 

I understand that City of Stayton has adopted the Employee Handbook only as a general guide about 
policies, work rules and the work environment. I acknowledge that the Employee Handbook is not an 
employment contract and are not intended to give me any express or implied right to continued 
employment or to any other term or condition of employment, and may be changed at any time. 

I will bring any questions or concerns I have regarding equal employment opportunities, discrimination, 
retaliation or harassment to Human Resources, the City Manager, or any trusted director or supervisor. I 
understand that I may bring complaints about these issues to my shop steward or trusted union 
representative, but that City of Stayton may not be able to address the issue unless notice is provided to 
City of Stayton by you or the shop steward/union representative. 

During my employment with City of Stayton, I understand that it is my responsibility to remain informed 
about the policies as revisions, updates and new polices as issued, and to ask questions about any 
interpretation of any of the policies. 

I have read this acknowledgement carefully before signing. 

 

______________________________________________ ____________________ 
Employee Signature  Date 

 

A scan of the original document will be kept in the Employee’s personnel file. A copy will be provided to 
the Employee upon request. 

 



 
 

 
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 

 TO: Mayor Henry Porter and the Stayton City Council 

 FROM: Dan Fleishman, Director of Planning and Development 

 DATE: May 18, 2020 

 SUBJECT: Business Oregon Matching Grant for Emergency 
Assistance to Small Businesses  

  
 
ISSUE 

This staff report it to provide information to the City Council regarding steps taken by Staff last 
week to submit a proposal for matching funds for COVID-19 emergency relief to small 
businesses within the City. 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

On Monday, May 11, the City received notice from the Oregon Department of Business 
Development (Business Oregon) that $5 million in state funds is being made available to local 
governments as matching funds to establish or supplement local appropriations for funding 
assistance to small businesses impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic and its economic 
ramifications.  The State’s Request for Proposals is attached. 

Staff met to discuss the possibilities for establishing a program for businesses in Stayton and 
identified a source of funding in the current year budget.  The Planning and Development 
Department has projected unspent funds for the Contract Services that was intended for 
implementation of the Economic Development Strategies adopted by the Council last summer.  
These funds were intended as match for grants and hiring consultants.  The City was 
unsuccessful in our grant applications and was not able to secure the consultants for other 
projects. 

The request for proposals from Business Oregon (attached) spells out the parameters for 
assistance programs by local governments in order to eligible for a state match the business: 

 must have been prohibited from operating by the Governor’s Executive Order or show a 
reduction in revenue of 50% in March or April compared to the same month last year; 

 must have no more than 25 employees; 

 must not have already received federal assistance for COVID-19; 

 must have their headquarters and principal operation with Oregon; 



 
 

Further the State program establishes the maximum assistance a business may receive, 
depending on the number of employees at the end of February, 2020. 

The proposal that staff has prepared limits participation to businesses with no more than 15 
employees and requires that the business have a physical presence within the city limits. 

The Request for Proposals required that proposals be submitted to Business Oregon no later 
than Monday, May 18 at 5:00 pm.  Staff proceeded to prepare a proposal and it was submitted 
in a timely manner to be considered by Business Oregon.  Drafts of the proposal were sent to 
the Stayton-Sublimity Chamber of Commerce and key members of the Economic Vitality 
Committee of Revitalize Downtown Stayton prior to finalization.  Though the details were not 
shared, members of the Stayton Budget Committee were informed of the proposal at their May 
12 meeting.  The City’s proposal is attached. 

The short timeframe between the announcement of the program and the deadline for 
submittal of proposals did not allow for approval of the proposal by the City Council prior to 
submission. However the City Council has the option of directing staff to withdraw the 
proposal. 

OPTIONS AND MOTIONS 

The City Council is presented with the following options. 

1. Indicate approval of submission of the proposal 

Move that the City Council approve the establishment of an Emergency Business Assistance 
Fund and submission of a. 

2. Indicate disapproval of the submission and request staff withdraw the proposal  

Move to direct staff inform the Oregon Business Development Department that the City’s 
proposal requesting matching funds for an Emergency Business Assistance Fund is 
withdrawn. 

 



City  o f  S tayton  

Department of Planning and Development 
362 N. Third Avenue • Stayton, OR 97383 

Phone: (503) 769-2998 • Fax (503) 769-2134 

www.staytonoregon.gov 
 

 

1 

Proposal to Oregon Business Development Department 

May 15, 2020 

Emergency Business Assistance Matching Funds 

Using an allocation of $25,000 from the City’s economic development funds and an equal match from 
Business Oregon, the City of Stayton will establish a $50,000 fund for providing assistance to businesses and 
non-profits with a physical presence within the city limits.   

Funding will be made available to businesses within the city limits of Stayton that have been adversely 
affected economically by the COVID-19 pandemic and the ensuing economic shut-down in one of the 
following two categories: 

 Those for-profit and non-profit (limited to 501(c)(3) corporations) businesses that were prohibited 
from operation as directed by Governor Brown’s Executive Order 20-12. 

 Those eligible for-profit businesses that can demonstrate a one month decline in revenue greater 
than 50% in the month of March 2020 or April 2020 as compared against sales in the month of 
January 2020 or February 2020. Those non-profit businesses (limited to 501(c)(3) corporations) that 
can demonstrate a decline in revenue greater than 50% across the months of March 2020 and April 
2020 as compared against the same period of time in 2019. 

In order to be eligible for financial assistance under the City’s program, businesses and non-profit 
organizations must have 15 or fewer employees and must certify that they have been unable to access 
federal CARES Act funds including: 

 Small Business Administration's Paycheck Protection Program (PPP); 

 Economic Injury Disaster Loan Emergency Advance program (EIDL); or 

 Other federal programs to date for emergency pandemic funding. 

The following businesses and non-profit organizations will not be eligible for assistance: 

 Passive real estate holding companies and others holding passive investments 

 Non-profit entities that do not have federal 501(c)(3) status 

 Businesses that are delinquent on federal, state or local taxes that were due before April 1, 2020 

 Businesses that do not comply with all federal, state and local laws and regulations 

 Businesses not headquartered and with principal operations within the State of Oregon 

 Businesses without a physical presence (retail store, office, warehouse, etc.) within the city limits of 
the City of Stayton 

 Businesses not registered to do business in Oregon (Secretary of State Business Registry 
verification) if such registration is required 

Awards to eligible businesses will be made as a grant.  The amount of the grant will be the greater of two 
figures based on an applicant’s ability and desire to submit supporting documentation:  the first amount is 
based on the number of employees before the COVID-19 crisis (as of February 29, 2020); the second  



City  o f  S tayton  

 

 

2 

amount is based on documented fixed operating expenses for the 60-day period of January 1 through 
February 29, 2020: 

 0-5 employees: 

o $2,500, or 
o 60-day fixed expenses up to a maximum of $5,000 

 6-10 employees 

o $5,000, or 
o 60-day fixed expenses up to a maximum of $10,000 

 11-15 employees 

o $7,500, or 
o 60-day fixed expenses up to a maximum of $15,000 

The number of awards made will depend on the distribution of business by employee size class.  It is 
anticipated that the majority of awards will be made to businesses with fewer than five employees, as that 
is the overwhelming number of businesses in the City that have been impacted by the COVID shut-down.  It 
is assumed that between 12 and 15 businesses will receive assistance.  It is estimated that three quarters of 
the allocation will be awarded to sole proprietor owned businesses.  All of the assistance will be awarded to 
businesses within the Stayton city limits, and therefore to rural businesses. 

Working in partnership with the Stayton-Sublimity Chamber of Commerce and Revitalize Downtown 
Stayton (the local Main Street organization), the city will publicize the availability of assistance to the 
business community immediately upon notification from Business Oregon that matching funds have been 
awarded.  The City will post notices of the availability of assistance on the City’s web site, through an email 
blast to its mailing list, and on Facebook, Instagram, and Nextdoor.  Particular effort will be made to reach 
businesses owned by members of historically disadvantaged population groups such as people of color and 
women.  The City’s partners will distribute information to their membership and contact lists. 

An application form will be developed that will require the applicant to provide the name and location of 
the business, the name and mailing address of the proprietor, the type of business (retail, service, 
manufacturing, office) the number of employees for the period of January 1 to February 29, 2020, 
certification that the business or proprietor has not received CARES Act PPP or SBA EIDL assistance, 
certification that they have been prohibited from operation under Executive Order 20-12 or providing 
documentation that sales or revenue have decreased by 50% or more in March or April 2020 compared to 
March or April 2019, and certifying they meet all eligibility criteria. 

Applications for assistance will be open for five business days after announcement of the program.  Upon 
closure of the application period, applications will be reviewed for completeness and eligibility by City staff.  
All of the eligible applications that are deemed complete will be tallied to determine the total amount of 
assistance requested.  If the total amount of assistance requested exceeds $50,000, there will be a random 
selection process established to determine which businesses receive assistance.  Business will be selected 
at random until the entire amount of available funding has been awarded. 

The assistance program will be administered by Dan Fleishman, the City’s Planning and Development 
Director, with assistance from Susannah Sbragia, the City’s Finance Director.  Within 21 days of the final 
grant award, a report will be sent to Business Oregon providing the number of applications received, the 
number of awards made and information regarding the recipients, as required by the RFP. 

. 

 



State of Oregon COVID-19  
Emergency Business Assistance Matching Fund 

Request for Proposals  
 

ANNOUNCEMENT 

The Oregon Legislature, in partnership with the Governor, allocated $5 million from the State 
General Fund, which will be combined with $5 million redirected from existing programs at the 
Oregon Business Development Department (Business Oregon), for the purpose of providing 
financial assistance to small businesses adversely affected by economic conditions associated 
with the COVID-19 pandemic that have not received federal emergency assistance under the 
federal CARES Act or other federal program for emergency pandemic funding.  

Many small businesses in Oregon face cash flow shortfalls due to the economic conditions arising 
from efforts to reduce the number and severity of COVID-19 infections. Some businesses have been 
closed by executive emergency orders, while others have voluntarily closed or reduced operations 
to address health and economic concerns. 

Many communities throughout Oregon are providing local assistance to small businesses, and this 
announcement provides up to a 1:1 match to augment these community-level assistance programs. 

To fill gaps not reached by other programs, these state funds are directed to adversely affected 
businesses with 25 or fewer employees, and only those that have been unable to receive federal 
CARES Act funding, including the Small Business Administration's Paycheck Protection Program, 
Economic Injury Disaster Loan Emergency Advance program, or other federal programs for 
emergency pandemic funding to date. Businesses may use the proceeds for any business related 
operating expenses, particularly to support businesses that were closed as they move into the first 
phase of statewide reopening.  

This announcement is for the first of three rounds of funding tied to this program, this round 
consists of $2,500,000, available up to a 1:1 match to funds in community programs to provide 
emergency economic assistance to local small businesses. Awards will be made to public entities 
(cities, counties, economic development districts, council of governments) that have or will develop 
a community business assistance program in response to the COVID-19 crisis and are able to meet 
the parameters of this program. 

Program awards made to public entities will be structured as forgivable loans. Forgiveness will be 
based upon a recipient’s ability to meet the program values and priorities outlined below and in 
contract. Public entities will be required to make sub-awards from this program to eligible 
individual businesses as grants.  

Awards for this round of funds will be based on a community program’s ability to achieve the 
parameters, values, and goals of the program. If you have such a program that meets the State’s 
program parameters, please submit a funding proposal.  

Proposals for this round of funding are due Monday, May 18, 2020 by 5:00 PM. 



Program Values 

 Ensure that historically disadvantaged individuals that own businesses have access to these 
funds. 

 Ensure these funds are supporting the small businesses unable to access or apply for federal 
funds. 

 Ensure that these funds are reaching every corner of Oregon. 
 Ensure that these funds are keeping businesses operational. 

Eligible Applicants  

Public entities (cities, counties, economic development districts, council of governments) that have 
or will develop a local business assistance loan or grant fund and are able to meet the parameters of 
this program as described below. Priority will be given to those public entities that were not 
allocated direct funding through the CARES Act. 

Local Program Funding Priorities 
Local assistance programs are expected to make one-time-only awards to businesses as follows: 

 Businesses that have been adversely affected economically in one of the following two 
categories: 

o Those for-profit and non-profit (limited to 501(c)(3) corporations) businesses that were 
prohibited from operation as directed by Executive Order 20-12. 

o Those eligible for-profit businesses that can demonstrate a one month decline in 
revenue greater than 50% in the month of March 2020 or April 2020 as compared against 
sales in the month of January 2020 or February 2020. Those non-profit businesses 
(limited to 501(c)(3) corporations) that can demonstrate a decline in revenue greater 
than 50% across the months of March 2020 and April 2020 as compared against the 
same period of time in 2019.  

 Businesses with 25 or fewer employees. 

 Businesses that have been unable to access federal CARES Act funds including: 

o Small Business Administration's Paycheck Protection Program (PPP); 

o Economic Injury Disaster Loan Emergency Advance program (EIDL); or 

o Other federal programs to date for emergency pandemic funding.  

Ineligibility Factors 

 Passive real estate holding companies and others holding passive investments. 

 Non-profit entities that do not have federal 501(c)(3) status. 

 Businesses that are delinquent on federal, state or local taxes that were due before April 1, 2020.  

 Businesses that do not comply with all federal, state and local laws and regulations. Businesses 
not headquartered and with principal operations in Oregon. 



 Businesses not registered to do business in Oregon (Secretary of State Business Registry 
verification) if such registration is required. 

Program Design 

Awards to eligible businesses will be made as a grant. The amount of the grant will be the greater of 
two figures based on an applicant’s ability and desire to submit support documentation: the first 
based on the number of employees before the COVID-19 crisis (as of February 29, 2020); or the 
second based on the documented amount of fixed operating expenses for the 60 day period of 
January 1 through February 29, 2020: 

 0-5 employees  
o $2,500, or 
o 60-day fixed expenses up to a maximum of $5,000. 

 6-10 employees 
o $5,000, or 
o 60-day fixed expenses up to a maximum of $10,000. 

 11-15 employees 
o $7,500, or 
o 60-day fixed expenses up to a maximum of $15,000. 

 16-20 employees 
o $10,000, or 
o 60-day fixed expenses up to a maximum of $20,000. 

 20-25 employees  
o $12,500, or 
o 60-day fixed expenses up to a maximum of $25,000. 

Program Award Targets 

The State will make awards to various local assistance programs designed to achieve geographical 
delivery across the state, with a target of at least 60% of awards reaching those in rural areas 
outside of the largest urban growth areas (see Award Process below). The State has set a target of 
50% of these funds to be awarded to sole proprietors, where possible, by the local assistance 
program. The State will encourage outreach to historically disadvantaged population groups. The 
funds must be rapidly deployed to meet immediate business needs and applicants will be required 
to fully deploy the proceeds within 45 days of receipt.  

Business Applications and Support Documentation 

 Businesses must: 

 Self-certify they have not received CARES Act PPP or SBA EIDL assistance as of the date of 
application. 

 Demonstrate: 

o That they were prohibited from operation as directed by Executive Order 20-12; or 



o That they had a sales or revenue decrease of 50% or more in the month of March or April 
2020, as compared against the sales or revenues of January or February 2020, or as 
compared against the same period in 2019. 

 Demonstrate they are headquartered and with principal operations in Oregon. 

 Self-certify they are not subject to any of the ineligibility criteria. 

 Self-certify that the business and its operations are, and will, remain compliant with all local, 
state and federal laws. 

 Provide business, financial and ownership information necessary to determine and verify 
eligibility.  

Other program details and next steps 

Local entities administering COVID-19 business assistance programs (loan or grant programs, new 
or existing) may apply to receive an award under this announcement. If approved, the applicant 
will enter into a contract with Business Oregon in short order. During the contract process, 
Business Oregon will consult on the detailed operational steps proposed by the local assistance 
programs, and the basic reporting needed by the State. 

Program Access 

It is intended that these state funds are equally accessible to all Oregonians, so a robust marketing 
program that reaches out locally to businesses owned by members of historically disadvantaged 
population groups (Asian, Black, Hispanic, Native American, and Women Owned Businesses) is a 
requirement of this program. Only those applicants that can demonstrate such a marketing 
program and fair access procedures will be considered for funding.  Local community program 
awardees will be required to: 

 Have program marketing materials available in languages that are representative of the local 
population. 

 Develop a stepped marketing program that reaches out and markets to members of historically 
disadvantaged population groups in advance of marketing to the general public.  

 Deploy the awarded funds to eligible businesses within 45 days of the receipt of funds. 

 Demonstrate, for loan forgiveness, that all agreed Program Access activities as described in the 
application and agreed upon in contract have been fulfilled.    

Application Process  

Local assistance programs should submit a written Proposal that describes the following: 

 Amount of award requested to match new or existing local funds (state funds up to, but will not 
exceed, local funds). 

 Description of your established or proposed small business support program responding to the 
COVID-19 crisis.  



o For matching funds being requested for a new program, describe how the program will 
be operational no later than May 30, 2020, and how the local assistance program 
eligibility requirements comply with the requirements in this State of Oregon COVID-19 
Emergency Business Assistance announcement.  

o For matching funds for an established program, describe when the program was formed 
and how the local assistance program eligibility requirements comply with the 
requirements of the State of Oregon COVID-19 Emergency Business Assistance.  

o For either, describe amount and source(s) of capitalization, the eligible applicants, the 
type(s) of awards made, award ranges, number of awards, amount deployed to date, and 
the amount remaining to be deployed.  

 Describe marketing activities and outreach to encourage participation of businesses owned by 
members of historically disadvantaged populations groups in the applicant’s jurisdiction(s). 
Describe any procedures to ensure equitable awards are made to those businesses owned by 
members of historically disadvantaged populations groups. (See Program Access above.) 

 Describe the plans to market the grant program, including partnerships and marketing 
strategies with chambers, business associations, Small Business Development Centers, etc.  

 Description of your grant/loan announcement and application process. 

 Description of your grant/loan review and award process. 

 Estimate geographic distribution of awards (list all municipalities and/or counties served):  

o The percent of allocation awarded to urban (cities with populations greater than 30,000) 
businesses, and  

o The percent of allocation awarded to rural (cities with populations of 30,000 or less, or 
unincorporated areas) businesses. 

 Estimate the percent of allocation awarded to sole proprietors.  

 Briefly describe the background of the executive in charge of the program, and description of 
any other key team members if desired, and description of any audit or oversight measures if 
desired. Provide contact information for a designated lead contact.  

There is no minimum or maximum page limit for Proposals or other format requirements, except 
that the Proposal must be delivered electronically in a Microsoft Office compatible file type, less 
than 20 megabytes.  

 

Proposals for this round of funding are due May 18, 2020 by 5:00 PM. 

 

Please deliver your Proposal by email to: 

Melisa Drugge, Regional Development Manager 
melisa.drugge@oregon.gov  
(503) 508-3147 for any questions 

  

mailto:melisa.drugge@oregon.gov


A GoToMeeting teleconference for questions and answers regarding this 
announcement will be held Monday, May 11 from 3:00-4:30 PM. 

 
From your computer, tablet or smartphone: https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/441110725  
From dialing in with your phone: : +1 (872) 240-3412   Access Code: 441-110-725  
 
New to GoToMeeting? Get the app now and be ready when your first meeting starts:  
https://global.gotomeeting.com/install/441110725 

Award Process  

Business Oregon will coordinate an expeditious review process and may contact any proposer for 
further clarification or negotiation. Decisions will be made in the State’s sole discretion, 
endeavoring to meet the objectives and targets described above and below: 

 No less than 50% of the awards to be made to Sole Proprietors.  

 No less than 60% of awards to be deployed in rural communities with population fewer than 
30,000 per the last decennial census (2010) data including all areas outside of the following 
urban growth boundaries:  

o Albany 
o Bend 
o Corvallis 
o Eugene/Springfield 
o Grants Pass 
o McMinnville 
o Medford 
o Portland Metro (City of Portland, Multnomah and Washington County and communities 

in Clackamas County with populations of 30,000 or more) 
o Salem/Keizer 

 To the extent possible, evenly balanced allocations to the following regions:  
o Central Region 

• Crook, Deschutes, Hood, Jefferson, Sherman and Wasco County 
o Coastal Region 

• Clatsop, Coos, Curry, Lincoln and Tillamook County, Lane and Douglas County 
west of Coastal Range 

o Eastern Oregon Region 
• Baker, Gilliam, Grant, Harney, Malheur, Morrow, Umatilla, Union, Wallowa, and 

Wheeler County  
o Metro Region 

• Multnomah, Clackamas, and Washington County 
o Southern Oregon Region 

• Jackson, Josephine, Klamath and Lake County and Douglas County east of 
Coastal Range 

o Valley Region 
• Benton, Clackamas, Columbia, Linn, Marion, Polk and Yamhill County and Lane 

County east of the Coastal Range 

https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/441110725
tel:+18722403412,,441110725
https://global.gotomeeting.com/install/441110725


Grant fund deployment deadlines and reporting requirements 

A final report is due the sooner of:  

 30 days from when the capital is deployed by the local assistance program to eligible 
businesses, or  

 July 15, 2020. 

Any proceeds not deployed by June 30, 2020 are to be repaid to Business Oregon on or before July 1, 
2020, unless waived in writing by the department. 

In the final report, the local assistance program will be required to report program and recipient 
information on a form prescribed by Business Oregon, including but not limited to: 

 Number of applications received 
 Number of awards made 

o Awards as #, $ and % of allocation by voluntary reported demographic information 
o Award as #, $, and % of allocation by region 
o Award as #, $, and % of allocation by company size  
o Award as #, $ and % of allocation to sole proprietors  

 Sub recipient data  
o Name of company 
o Employer Identification Number (EIN) 
o Oregon Business Identification Number (BIN)  
o Business Owner(s) Social Security Number  
o Address of company 
o Industry/NAICS 
o Amount of award 
o Legal business structure  

o # of employees as of February 29, 2020 

 

 

 


	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page



